
Kankakee County, Illinois

Annual Financial Staternents

As of and for the year ended
November 30,2012



KâD ka l(cc County, llli ois
A¡¡¡rual Financi¡l Stât'cmcnts

^s 
ofâDd fo¡"lhc YcaI EDdcd Novcmbcr' 30, 2012

'l'ablc of Contc¡rls

Page

.....1IDdcl)cndcnl A rrd itor''s I1cpot 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Iìcport on IntcrDâl Contlol C)vcr lìinâncial lìcpot ting and on Compliancc and Oflìer
MâttcÌs lìâscd on an Audit of lìinallciâl Stâ tctncr ts Pcllblmcd iÌ Accot daDcc With

Iìâsic FiDancial Statcrncllts:

lìund Fìnancial Slaten)en1s:

Statemcnt ol'Rcvenues, Iìxpenditulcs, arrcl Changcs in lìund Balances - Coveltrlenta l l'unds ................... 24
Iìcconciliatio¡r of the Statement ofRcvcnues, Expenditutes, and Changes in Fund llaiances ol"
GovcnllDcr)taì Funds to the StatcD'lent ofAclivitics...... ..............25

Slateruent ofRcvcrues, lixpel)ses, and Changes in Net Asscts Proplictary Funds... ..................................27
Slatcrùent of Cash [ìlows - P[oplictary Funds.................,.,.....
Stalcrnent ofIìiduciary Ncl Asscts - Fiducialy Funds...........
Slatcment ofChangcs in Iriduciary Net Assets - Iridrìciary Fullds.....,...,......,..,,,,

Nolcs 1o Firrlr¡rci¡l Slrtcrìr(nls.......

Iìcquired Supplcrucnta Iy Infolmalion:
Rucìgctaly Cornpalisor Si lrcdrrlcs:

Gr:nelal I.und - Rcvenues and Other lìir'ìancing Soulccs (Uses)...........................
Gcrrclaì l:r¡nLl - li\ncndilurcs........
Tort I-iability tiund
Pension lìrrnd..
('ôllrì(y I I jgh\ ay Iiund........................

Schedule ofFLrnding Ploglcss - Illinois Municipal lìe{irerrlent lìrìnd and OI,EB.
Notes to Ilcquired Supplementary Infotnration

,.,..,,.,,.,,.,,,.,,.,,.,,.,..... .. 28

'.. '.'...'.' ..'..'..'..'..,'., .'' 29

'.''..'...',''..'..'..''.''.''.,..'' 30

'.,'..'..''.''.....'..,..''....''.'' 3 ]

54
55

63

64
65
66
61

Othcl' Supplcme ìtâ ry lnlot'nlalioD:
'l or'1 l:xlrcIlLlilul cs ..

Cornbining and Individual Fuud Staleuleuts aud Schedulcs:
Conrbìning Balance Sheet - Genelal lìund........................
Colnbinìng StatcDlent of lìevenues, Expendilul-cs alld Changes in Furrd llafânces --

Ccnc¡¡l Ijund..........
Combiniug Balance Sheet - Nonua.iol Govenìll'ìental Fullds .

Coubiniug Statcncnt o1'Revenues, lix¡teuditures and Changcs in Fund Balanccs -
Norttnajor Covelnnrental Funds

Ilalancc Sheets - Majol aud Nonrnajol Spccial Reyenue Funds
Stalen]ents ol lìeverrues, Iìxpcnditules, and Charrgcs in Fuud

Balanccs - Major and Nonmaiol Spccial Revenuc Funds...................... .

Juvenile Dctcntion Debt Service Iìund - Statcment ofRevenLlcs, Ilxpcnditures, and ChaDges
in lìund Balancc - Iludget ând AotLìaì

2009 Bond Series Debt Selvice Fuud - Statcrncnt of IìevcìÌuos, ììxpenclitures, and Changes
in IìuDd Ilâlance - Iìudge( and Actual .,,.,..,,.,,.,..,...,

201 I Bond Series l)cbt Seryice l"und - Stalerneut ol'lìevenues, lìxpendilures, and Clhanges

in firnd llalancc - lludget aDd 
^ctual....2012 Ilond Scries Dcbt Scryice Fund - Stât(rnrent of RevcDues, llxÞendìtures, ancl Changcs

jn fund llalance - Iludge{ arld Actual....
Stâtcnrcnt oflriduciary Nct 

^sscts 
- PIivalc Purposc lìL¡st lìunds................

Slalcnìenl of Chânges iìì Fiducialy Not ,4ssets - Private PLìì poss 'lì rìs1 lrunds
Conbining Baìance Shcct - Fiduciary Funds - 

^gency 
F!ìncls

Stalcment ofChânges ír1 Asscls ar)d l..iabilities - Agcrrcy Fuuds.....,

...69

.. 70

...71

...72

...13

..,7 4

...82

...83

...84

85

86

81

{ì ¡l

90
9t



II¡rìi I-. srì,ith
W¡$)c l).l(odliùg

lìnllîúÌ S. sr(xynrBo'
It¡ù:ic l\i.rrì ts l(oìbcrll
i\.tich¡cll. Srroù(ì
I(cirlì ì1. ()h¡)

Smith, I(oelling,
lltSlHt*.-o"ln*:;,

llil)5 N (Ì$r.¡r
l](n!t(rrD,ris, Il, ôoflll

(8li)) 93?-11ì97

ì¡¡x: (lìla)) 1)3to:l{'l)
\\$r.sI(ìo(t)¡.ûrù

l}.lÌìì¡ir (70i1) lì,1('-3232
Moùrj¡ (lìlat 1tl2-255,1

lÌ.Nùcr (8lat .12{;!80¡l

l'()ror¡i (?08) 25iì-0300
\YihìiDsto¡ (l-.ll¡, C?{i ¡4??

Kankakee County Board
Kankakee County, Illinois
Kankakee, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying fmanciaì statements ofthe govemmental activities, the business-type activities,
the_aggregate discretely prêsented componenf units, each major fund, and the aggregató remaining funä information
ofKankakee County, State oflllinois, as ofand for the year ãnded November ¡õlzo-tz, wnicn coiectively comprisetle County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These înancial statements are the
responsibility of Kankakee County, State oflllinois' management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
f¡nancial statements based on our audit. we did not audii the financial s-tatements of the Kãnkakee County public
Building Commission, which represents 100 percent of the assets, net assets and revenues of the component unit
column. Those financial statements rvere audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been fumished to us, and
our opinion, insofa¡ as it relates to the amounts included for the Kankakee County Public Building Conr.i.rion, i.
based on the report ofthe other auditors.

we conducted our audit in accordance ìvith auditing standards generally accepted in the United Ståtes of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained ii Goveinment' Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the Uniúed States. Those standards require that we plan and-perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assumnce about whether the financial statements are free of matórial missàþment. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and th€ significant estimates made by management, as wel¡ as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentåtion. We believe that our âudit and thð reporiof other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on ou¡ aud¡t and the report of the other auditors, the ftnancial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each majãr ñrnd, and the aggreiate remaining
fund information of the Kankakee County, State of lllinois, as ofNovemter í0, zot z, ana tne teifre"fiu" ct ung". ii
financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, the¡eof for the year then onded ln conformity with accounting
principles generally acoepfed in the United States of Amer¡ca.

In accordance with Governmenl Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 26, 2013, on our
consideration of the Kankakee County, State of lllinois' intemal conhol over financial reporting and on our tests of
its complia-nce with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreement" anã othe¡ matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of ow testing of internál conúol over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to p¡ovide an-opinion on intemal control over financial repã*ing
or on- compliance. That report is an. integral-paf ofan audit performed in accordance with Governnent Aiditing
Slandards ar.d should be considered in assessing the results ofóur audit.

Accounting. principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and. analysis, budgetary comparison information, and tbe schedule of ñrnding progress --Illinois Municipal
Retirement Fund, as found in table of contents, be presented to supplement tne-básic-financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic finanCial statements, ii required by the Govemmental Accounting
Standards Board, who conside¡s it to be an essential part of fxrancial reporting for placing the basic financia'i
statements in an âppropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We'have ãpplieà certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance \¡/ith auditing standards gånerally accepted in the United
Ståles of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about tfre methods ãf prepãring the information and
comparing the information for consistency with managcment's responses to our inquiriesl the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 6asic financial søtements. We do not €xpross
an-opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
suflicient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurancc.

Indcpendcnf Auditor's Repora
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Oul audit was conducted for the pu¡?ose of formilìg opirìions on the financial statements that collectively cornprise
the Kankakee Coulìty, State of lllil'rois' financial statements as a whole. The other supplenlentary infor¡ratio¡ as
listod i¡) the table of contents is pÌesented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a requiÏed Þart of thc
financial statenetìts, The otÌler supplelnentary infôrn'ìation is the lesltonsibility of manageìreììt ald was derived
from aùd relates diroctly to the underlyirìg accounting and othe¡ records used to prepare the fitrancial statemelìts.
'lhe infornìation has been subjected to the auditing proceduÌes applied in the audit of the filìancial statcments arìd
certaiìl additìonal procedures, including conparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accÒuntiug and other records used to prepare the financial statemenls or 10 the finaDcial statements themselves, aDd
ofher additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards geDcrally accepted in tlìe United States of
Ämerica. ln our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements
as a whole,

Å*M {Nl/.^rþ%/@tt"- â'^0L ( h'nt' P( 'r'--'''. - 0 0

Bourbonnais, Illinois
June 26, 2013
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Report on Intcrnâl Control Over F.inanciat Reporting
snd on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an

Audit of Financl¡l Statements Pcrformed ln
Accordance With Governmenl Audlt¡rrg Standads

Kankâkee County Board
Kankakee, County, Illinois
Kankakee, Illinois

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, thc business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely^presented component units, each majoifund, and the aggregate romaining funà information of Kankakee
county, State of lllinois, as of and for the year ended Noveübei30, 2012, ühich collectively comprise the
lankakge County, State of lllinois' basic financial statements and have issued our repon thereo;'d;ted June 26,
2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally acceped in ttre Unitø States of
America.andlhe standards applicable to furancial audits cont¿ined in GoJ¿rn ment Audiing Standørats, issued Uy the
Comptroller General ofthe United Stâtes.

Intcrnal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management.of Kankakee County, Illinois is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control
over ftnancial reporting. In planning and performing s¡r audiÇ we considered Kankakee"County, llinois', intemal
contr.ol over f¡nancial reporting as a basis for desþing our auditing procedures for the purposó of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of ãxþressing an opinion oi the effectiveness of
Kank¿kee County, Illinois' internal control_over financiàl reporting. Aìcordiigly, wà do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness ofthe Kankakee county, Ilrinois' internal cóntrolãver frnancüíieporting.
our consideration ofinternal control ôver- financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
Paragraph and r,vas not designed to identify all deficiencies ìn internal cont¡ol ovår financial reporting thaimight bãsignificant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance ihat ai deficiJncies,
sjgnificant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described below, we identified adeficiency in intemal control over financial reponing that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deJìciency in inlernql conlrol exists when the design or operation of a contxol does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned frrnctions, to prevent, or detect and colTect
misståtements on a timely basis. A material weaktess is a deficiency, or a combiniion oi deficiencies, in inte.mal
conhol such that there is a reasonable possibility that a mate¡ial misstätement ofthe entity's linancial staíements willnot be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the defioiáncy described below to be
material weaknesses.

Finding 2012-01: Cefain salaried employees werc inadvefentty paid more than contractually stâted
or boa¡d authorized amounts during fiscar year z0r2 due to ihi anomaly of there being'2? pzy
periods during the year, rather than the normal 26 pay periods. The anomãly occur, r"".y-tz oi ß
years on a bi-weekly pay schedule, depending on the calendar and actual pay dates.

Management's Response: To ensure that this does not reoccur, all sþtements ofpayroll in the ñ¡ture
will include an amount in a blweekly format to conform to the county's bi-wåeÉty pay schedule.
This \Yill continue as is the cunent practice in all non-union statements ófpayroll. Ány sataries ttrat
are boa.rd autho¡ized will also include a bi-weekly format at the next opp;funity for approval, in or
prior to May 2014. Additionally, the bi-weekly format ì.vill be included in all union contia"ts as they
are presented for negotiâtion. As this anomaly of2? pay periods will not occur again untit 2024, this
method will be common practice prior to that timc.

ffi
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Compliarce and Olher Mattcr.s

As paft of obtainìng reasonable assurance about whelhe¡ Kankakee County, llliDois' filìancial state)ìlents are t.ec of
l,lìalerja] misstatetnelÌt, we perforlned tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, coü¡-acts,
and grant agrccmeDts, nolcotnpliance wittr which could bave a direct a¡d lnaterial effbct on the deter,tninatiou oi
finatlcial stalement amounts. I-lowever, providing an opinion on cornpliance with those provisions was not an
objective of oul audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The ¡esults of our tests disclosed
instances of notlcompliance or other tnatters lhat are requiÍed to be reported tnder Goyernntenl Audilh1g Slan(lat"cls
and which is described as Finding 2012-01 âbÕve,

Kankakee County, Iìlinois' response to the finding identified in our audit is described above. We did not audil
Kankakee County, Illinois' response, and, accordingly, wc exPÌess no opinion on it.

This repof is intcnded solely for tlìe inlomration and use of rnanagernent, the audit committce, tho County Board,
olhers wilhin the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-tluough entities and is not intondcd to be and s¡ould
not be used by anyone othel than these specified parties.

Å"^'il,V/.U^U:A¡-aa' 
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Bourbonnais, Illinois
Iwte 26,2013



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSTON AND ANALYSIS

'l'he DranagelncDt of lhc County of l(ânkakee prl]sents reâdel5 of the Counly's Jìnâncial slâteÌlent lhis narr tivc
ovetview and analysis ol'the lìnarìcial activitics fol the fiscal yeal ended Novenrbe¡ 30, 20l2 âDd 20I L

'flìe Managemcnt's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an elon'ìerÌt oi'the repor.ting nodel adopted by lhe
GovernnreDtaI AccouDting Standalds I]oard (GASII) in their Staternent No. 34 Ilasic Finânc¡al Statements - and
MâDâgenleuf's Discussiol) and ADalysis .- for State and l,ocal GoveÌnmeDts issued June 1999. l'hìs analysis will
ìuclude conrparative infòrrnatioll lo last year's finâncial stâtente¡tts.

FINANCIAI, HIGIìLIGHTS

'I'he assets of the County ol'l(ankakee exceeded its liabilities at the close of the n'rosl rocent fìscaì yeal by lì63
lnillion (rel alsel,i). Net assets iÌvested jIcapital assets (net ofdeprecìation and relatcd debt) account l'or ove]'
68 percenl ol this amounl ($43.2 rnììlion). Of the total, $4.8 million (unrestt icted nel ar,rel.r) nray be used to
neet the govellìurent's ongoiug obligatioDs to citizeus al'td cleditors.

At tlìe close offiscal year 2012, tlÌe County ofKankakec's goverÍìmcutal fullds fepoúcd combined cnding lund
balances of $l 8.0 nrillion.

Ovelall levcnucs lor governurenlal funds were fi54.4 million.

OVEIìVIEW OF THE FINANCIAI, STATEMENTS

'I'his annual report consists of three pâr'ls - mâDagcmcnt's discussion and analysis (this seclioll), thc bâsic
filaÌcial statclncuts, and t'cquilcd supplcurcntaly information. lhis discussion and aualysis is intended fo serye
as an ir)tloduction to fhe County of l(anl<al<ec's basic financial stâterlerts. l'he lrasic fir]ancial slateurents conìprisc
two tyPes ofstaten'rents (hal presellt differenl v¡ews oftho County:

' The first two slatelner'ìts âlo govclllrncnt-ryidc finarcial statcncÌts that provide both long-lcrlll and
short-tcrDl inforn'ìafion about the CouDty's ovelall finaDcìâl slatus.

. The rcnraining sfatenlenls are Íurìd fiÌallciâl stâtcrncDts thât locus ol] iDdividual parts 01'the County
govelnmeut, rcllortìùg the County's operations in rnore dctail than tlle govelllme Dl-wide staten'ìol'ìts.

. 'l'llc govclrìmental funds statenrents tell how gencral govcrnmenl selvices such as public salety rvere
fiuallced in thc short-tcrur as well as what remaiDs fol future sPending.

. Ploplictary fund stalcrlents olleÌ sho¡ t- aDd long-tcrnr f'jnancial inf'ol'nation about thc activitics that the
govelnureul oÞetates lihc a busincss, such as tho lìmergency 'ì-elephone Systern (91 I ).. Fiduciâry I'uDd statenlcllts plovidc inlblnatiorl about thc fiuancial lelationships, lil<c tlrc drainagc dislr'ict
funds, in which thc County acts solely as a frustcc or agent for the beDelit of others, to wlroIlr lhe
resoulces in qLìestion belong.

l-he linancial statcnrents âlso include notes thât expìaiu some ol the infolrnation in the llnancial statements arìd
ptovide tnole detailed data. '[he st¿rtcrlcr]1s âre follo\.¡r'ed by a section ol'requilcd srìpplcttlert¿rry inforfi¿rtion that
fLìrther exlllaiÍìs alìd supllorls thc infornâtion in the 1'lnancìal staternents.

llluslration A shows how the lequisite palts o1'thìs annual leÞolt âre arrangcd and relâtcd to one another',



IllustÌatioì A
C)rganization of thc Count), of Kârl(al(cc's AnÌuâl Fitrarìciâl I{cpor'1

Sumrnary

lllushation B sunrmalizes the rnajo| featurcs of the County's fiuancial stateìr'ìenls, including thc poÍ.ion oJ'the
Coru)ty goveÌnn'ìenl thcy cover alld the types of inl'ormation tlìey coDtaiu, 'l'he lemaindct ol'tlris ovct vicw scctior ol'
rnaragenrent's discussion al'ld analysis explains the str uctule aDd coDterls of cach of tl'ìe statenents.
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lirDd Irilr¡Ùìci¡l Sf â{c[ì(nls

Govcnrùrcùtîlrüìds l)r'opricl¡rrrl\ür(¡s Iiduciîryliùrds

'l'hc ôçlì.vìlìçs ol'lhc AÇlivilioslhc CouDly lnsla[oes irì ùliich thc.
(ìnrDly lhÍl trc not ofcrirl(r siDìililr lo Cr)urìly js llìc lnrslcc or
Iìruprictr,) L'r liJ$cirD. privttr busin(.s(s: tllc ir8cDt l'o, sr r(oDc
srlch äs odDlinisl¡alivc fmcrgcncy lclcthoDc clic i rcsoL ccr, such as

aird publie sal¿lyr : '. (91l) syül¿¡ìr.rand . tùè iìraiiâge dist¡ict': . . ., ADiiìr I Cònkòl fu¡rds
. Ilâlârìceshect ' Sta[e rcnLofDet ' Slatcìncnl of'
. StatcDreDt ol asscls Iiduciary nel

rcvcrlucs. . St¿fcrrcnl oi assots

oxpeDditurcs, nDd rcvcDùes, . Sl¡tcntorÌt oj'
ch¡ngcs in l¡nd cxpenscs, and changes in
bala[ccs ch¡ìnges ir] nct fìduciary ncl

nssels assc{s

' S1rìtenteû1ol c¿ìsh

flo\Ys

Mòdificd lìccrual Accrual îcòounlirìg and ,Açcrual accouniillg a¡d
acùou,rlìDgdn(ìeùrcrìl ccoDo¡niurcsourcrç cconornirrcsourcrs
.ìirralrcial rcsoLrrggs lQcrs . locus
.locus'

O¡lly assols cxpcotcd to Afl ¡sscts rÌnd All âsscLs âùd
be lsod ùD and liabiljlies, both li¿rl,ìilitics, lìoth short-
liatrilitics that oonrc drìc llnanciâl ¿ìnd capital, lcrnr 4Dd loDg-lc lr
duling lhe ycar or soon ând shorf-tcnl) ¡nd
1ì)creâicr long-toml

Ilcvc,ruc' l,rr \rhich 
^ll 

rc\(nucs ¿urJ 
^ll 

rc\'l;nùcs rnd
cird) is ¡c{c¡vcd duri,ìg cxlJcDscs durirìg lhc (Àpcrìs(s durìrìß thc
or soo¡l ¿ìlìÈr th¿ eùd af ye4r'; rcgaidloss.ol . .yc¡ìì. rcgardlcss o1.
lhc yeill; e)ipcfldilrirùs \,lh(D lasl, is rc{ci\(d $!ìc,ì cxsl) is rccciv(J
uhen goods or scrviccs or'lìrid or nri,l
hûvc bccD rccciv(Li fl¡d
|flynrcrì! is dr¡c dr¡riDg
thç yçtìr or seon
lhcrcafi(r

^cçol|tlliDg 
bûs¡$ ¡nd. . .^ççrur!l açcountìDg ar)d

Itc,tsr¡rcne0llocrrs ec0¡lerniorcsor¡rqes
' locus

'l ypc ol nsscl/liabilily 
^ll 

assels 4¡d
iîfor¡n¡lioù liûbilitics, borh

lin¿ìnciâl âûd câpit¿ll,
and short'lernr ând

lo¡gtc11ìl
'l l pc ol itDl,)rr/oIrll{rry All rcvrDUcs aud
i¡ifor¡nàtio¡r . r, 'òxpèlses rlurirìg ycar,.

rcg rdlcss ol'rÏhcn cilslt
is rrccivcd or prid

(;ovcID nrcDt-\ridc Stâtctncr ts

'l lÌe govelrìmenl-widc slateì)rcnts leport information about the County âs a wholc using âccounting nlethods similal
to those used by pÌ ivate-secto cornpanies. 'l-lle statenrenl ol'nct âssets includcs all of the County's asscts alìd
liabilities. I'he dilTcrence be¡ween llle two is rìet assets. Ovel tine, incleases ol decleases in net assets n'ìay servc as

a useful indicatol of whether the financial positìon ofthe County is i[rp|oving or detel ¡oraling. 'fhe statcrnent of
activities presents ilìformation showing how tlle govellìl1lerìl's nct assefs cllanged during the trost tecent fiscal year'.

All oflhe cunent ycar's revcnues and expenses are accouuted for ir'ì the statelÌlent ofactivities legardìess ofwhen
cash is received ol paid.

'l'he two goverl'rìì]ent-wide sta(erììerìts rcporl. the County's nat assets and how they have changed. Nct assels, the
diffelence betweolì the County's assets ancl liabilities, afe olìe way to u'ìcasule thc County's iìIlânciâì health, Both
ofthc gover nrnen t-w ide financial stâtenrents distingLrish ful'lctjons of'the County that ale plincipally supported by
taxes and intcÌgovel u nlen la l Ievorì0cs (governrnental âctivities) ùonr other functions that are intended to ì-ecover aìl
or a signìficânt portion oftheif cosls lhrough uscr lees ând charges (business-type activities).

'l'ire goverrìn1cnt-wide l'inancial statemonts of the Counly arc divided into threc câtegories:

L Gover¡¡¡ncntal activities - Mosf (]1'the County's basic scr.vices arc included hclc, such as the Sheriffs
Depaltrrenl, Stato's 

^ttorney 
Office, llighway [)epaltrnent, llcaltlì Dcpartrì]ent, aud Gene|al Adnlinjstration,

ProÞer(y taxes ancl state and l'ederâl grants firance tnost ofthese activit¡es.



2 Busincss-type acfivifics -'fhe County charges fees to customers to help cover the costs of cadain services it
Prov¡des. 'fhe County's Iltnergency TelephoDe (91l) System and Animal Contol are iucluded he¡e.

3 Componcnt units - The County includes another entity, the Kankakee County.Public Building Comrnission, injts repoft. Althouglr legally separate, this component unit is iÌììpofiatìt because the County is financially
accountable for ìt. The Public Building Comrnission is a discretely-presented component unit of the County ôf
Kankakee. The Cotnmission issues separate financial statements which aÌe orì file at the Officc of the Fi¡ance
Director, Kankakee Coutìty, 189 E. Coùrf St., Suite 300, Kankakee, Illinois 60901,

Additionally, the Kankakee County Ileâltlì Depaftment, the Veterans Assistance Comrnission, and the
Kankakee County Enrergency Telephone System Board are blended component units of the County of
Kankakee. These entities' financial statements are blended with those of the Counly due to a degree of cotìtrol
that the County has ovor these functions. However, both the Heaith Department and the Emergerrcy Telephone
Systern Board have issued separate financial stâtements which are also on file at the County.

The govemment-wide financiaÌ statements can be found on pages 2l-22 ofthis report.

Fund Financial Statcments

Kankakee County's fund ltnancial statements provide more detailed information about the County's most significant
funds, as opposed to the County as a whole. Funds are accouÌrting devices that the County uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. Some funds are required by State law oì. by bond
covenants The County lloard establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to
show that it is properly using ceftain taxes and grants.

The County has three categories offunds:

l. Governmcntal funds: Most of the County's basic services are included in governmentâl funds, which focus on
both how cash and other fìnanciaÌ assets that can readily be convefted to cash flow in and out, and the bâlances
left at year-end that ar€ available for spending, Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a
detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that cau
be spent in the near future to finance the County's programs. Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, additional information at the bottom of the
govemmental funds statement explains the relationship, or differences, between them.

Kankakee County maintains thirty-f¡ve individual governmental funds. lnformation is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the govemmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, ind
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Pension Fund, and County Highway Fund, These three funds
are consideled to be major funds. hl prior years, the Tort Fund \ryas also listed separately as a major fund.
However, GASB l0 states thât for fìnancial reporting purposes, the activity in the Tort Fund should be
presented as if it we¡e part of the General Fund. Data lìorn the other thiúy-two govemmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund datâ for each of these non-major
govemmental funds is provided in the form ofcombining statements elsewherc in this report,

Kankakee County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. This schedule is
found in the Required Supplementary lnformation section.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on p ages 23-ZS ofthis report.

2. Proprietary funds: Services for which the County charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds, like tho government-wide statements, provide both long- and shoft-term financial
irforrnation. In facf, the County's cnterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-
type activities, but provide more detâil and additional informatjon, such as cash flows. Kankakee County uses
entelprise funds to account for its Emergency TeÌephone Services (9ll) system and for its animal control
operation,



The basic proprietary fuld financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 oftlìis reporl.

3. l'iduciary funds: The County is a trustee, or fiduciary for otlìer assets tlìat, because ofa trust an.atìgement, cân
be used only for tlìe trust beneficiaries, The County is responsiblo for ensuring that the assets reporfed in these
funds are used only for their intendod purposes and by tlìose to whom the assets belot'ìg. All of the County's
fiduciary activities are reported in â separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statenent of changes in
fiduciary net assets. Kankakee County exclucles these activities fronì the county's govelnment-wide financial
staternents because the County cannot use fhese assets to filtance its operations.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 29-30 ofthis report.

Notcs to thc Financial Statements

The notes providc additional information that is essential to a full understanding of tlìe data provided in the
govemment-wide and fund financial slatements.

The notes 10 the financial statements can be found on pages 3 t-52 of this report.

Otlrer Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this repofi also presents ceftain required
supplementary ìnformation conceming the County's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension þenehts to
its employees and budgetary comparison schedules for major governmental funds.

Required supplementary information and related notes can be found on pages 54-67 ofthis report.

The combining statements refened to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are presented
immediately following the required supplementary information. Combining and individual fund statements ârìd
schedules can be found on pages 70-90 ofthis report.

GOVERNMENT.WIDE F'INANCIAL ANÄLYSIS

This is the tenth year tltat the County has presented its fìnancial statements under the repofting model required by
the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Stâtement No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Finqnciql Stalements - qnd
Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State an(l Local Goyernruents. The repoting model significantly
clìanged the recording and presentation offinancial data from the previous model and comparative data is provided.

Exhibit I is a condensed version of the statement of net assets for the County of Kankakee. At the close of the
current fiscal year the County's net assets exceeded liabilities byjust over $63 million. Net assets for govemmental
activities decreased approximateÌy $1.9 million from FY 201l. This follo\¡/s decreases of $1.3 million from Fy
2010, $l.0 million from FY 2009 and $5,33 million in tbe prior year fïom an all-time high ofover $72 million in Fy
2008. l-lowever, for business-type activities, net assets increased by nearly $0.1 million.



Iixhibit I
CoDdcüscd Stâtclrcnt ol Nct Asscts (lD Thousancls)

Govclnlìlcntal Activitics
2012 20ll

Busincss-Type Activilics
2012 201I 20ll

ì0

'l'otâl

Cut'len1 and other assels

Capital assets

Total asscts

Culrent and othel liabìlities
l-ong-term debt

Total liabilitics

s 40.219 s 43.737 $ 4.s87
64,44e - 6é;12 -_2,420
t04,668 t09,489 1,007

24,781
)) )qa

41 ,OU

44,709 t,238
15,873 253
( r,0rì5) 3,960

s ryz $__ryll

s 4.739 lì 44.80ó $ 48,476
2,329 66,8(¿ _q8,qgr
7,068 I I t,675 ó,557

910 43,201 45,6t9
254 15,057 16,12'7

- 4,20t 4,780 3,1 t6

q _!t!l q_qip{ q q$-q?

26,31) 575 498 25,362 26,809
23,681 e8r 1,20s -,p27: __al88q
49,992 1,5s6 1,703 4'¿,637 51,695

Net assets inves(cd in capital
assels, net ol'related debt 41,963

lìes1r'icted 14,804
Un|estlicted 820

'l'otâl rct asscts $ 57,587

¡. sigrilìcant porlion ofthe CouDly's net assets (68.5 pcrccnt) rcllccts irl\,cstrÌrent o1$43.2 nillion in capilal assets

such as Ìand, buildings, âDd equipnrcnl, less aDy rclatcd oulstanding debt used 10 acquile those assels. 'l'he Counly
uses lhcse callitaì âssets to provide selvìces 1o cìtizcns; consequerrtly, these assets a)e ùot avai]able lbl Îìilurc
spending. Although the Counly's iDvestlne¡rl in ils capital assets is rcporled net oflelâted debt, the resoulces needcd

Lo rcpay lhe debt rùust be provided 1ì'oll] othel sourccs, as capifal assets calluot lle used to liquidate those liabilil¡es.

An additiolal pot.tioll of tlre County's net assets, $ì15.1 urillion (24 pelcant), rcprcselìts resoulces tllat are sullject lo
external restlictions ol'l lrowthey may be used. Of this anount, $0.6 nliìlìon 01'govelnmenfal activities alld aìl ofthe
business-(ype activi{ies resÍicted ncI assets aIe restlicted 10Ì debt seÌvice. Additionally, !ì0,5 miÌlion ¡s restlicted lor
capital plojects related to tlÌe lntegraled Justice hrfolnration Systems (lJlS) Projcct. Ihe renrairdel is restricted l'or
other pL¡l poses.

'l-he lenraining poÌtion of the CouDty's net ¿lssets (7.5 percenl) is localed in unresh¡cted ìlet assets. I(ankakee
County's unÌestlioted nct assets o1" 1ì4.8 ruillion ¡Ìay be used lo rneet the County's ongoìng obligations to citizens
and creditols. lhisisanincleaseof $1.7nrillionoverall in lhe County's unrestl icted net assets f¡orìr the prioryear.

Al thc end of the cunenl 1ìscal year', the Counly of l(anl<akee is able to reporl posilive balances in all thtce
categolies of llet assets, both fol thc governrnent as a whole, as well as l'or its scpar¿lc govelulren{al aud business-
type activities. 'I'his is the lilst yeal since 2008 that the County has had a positivc balance in Lìurestricted ¡'ret assets

for governmcufal activities,

'Ì-he following table, Exhibit 2, illustlates changes ir rÌet asscts [csultirg tom chauges ìn revenues ¿ìnd expendilules.



Ilxhibit 2

Kanl(¿rl(cc Counly's ChrìDgcs iD Nc(

R()vcDr¡cs
l)r'ogram l{cvcì'rucs
Chalges I'oI Sclviccs
ClÞerating Cranls arìd Corìtributiolls
ClaPital Clants ard ContliL¡utions

Gc¡rcral Iìevcnucs
PloÞelty I'axes
Salcs'l'ax
State Incoì)rc'lÌrx
Ilcplaccurcnt and Other"l'axcs
OIhcl'

'l'0tâl lleveÙucs

ExDcDscs
(iovcrnrrcrllirl 

^ctiviticsGcncral CìovcrDmcnt
l']ublic Sal'oty
CouIt Scrv¡ccs
'lìunsl)ol tatiolr
I Icalth ancl Sanitatio¡
Vctcl ans Adnrirlistl atiorl
Ijconorio I)cvclcipurcnt
lnlcrcsl and lìscal cha|gcs

llL¡s jncss- l'ype 
^clivif 

ics
IlIl1clgency l'elcphoì1c Sorvices
,ADìmal Coutlol

'I'otâl Itrl)cnscs

Assels (ln'I'housantls)
GovcrnnrcDtâl llusiress-'lypc

2,74',7 2,60tÌ
277 298

3,024

Activifics 
^ctivitics 
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7,8 tÌ Iì
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329
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7,4 tì 5
I 5)?
2,49 s

Il 32 249

5 5,5 ti5

8,'t'71
21,',]53

c) 419

8,8? 7

3,266
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3,407
1.163

___s1a2!. _ _¡fu82

9,483 8,',t't'1

23,08'7 21 ,'7 53

9,463 9,4'7 9
'7 ,2so 8,8 7 7

3,396 3.266
230 23'l

2,431 3,40',7

1,015 1.163

2,'74',7 2,60u
2'7'7 298

56,355 56,959

( 1,3'7 4)

,_ç2
(r,3 r2)
(r0,809

s.ë2427

2,906 59,3'79 5 9,1165

lixcess (l)clicicncy) Ilclb|c Special Itenrs (1.Xt1)
Spccial & l:ixtlaoldinaly ltcn'rs 

-1.?.

I¡ìclcâse (Decì casc) iD Nct Assets ( I,910)
Nct Asscts - llcginning ol Ycar' 59,49'l

Nct Asscts - lind ol'Year' $ 57,587

t9l (r,881) (r,r{i3)
__tz _,,,9?,

(1,824) ( 1, r21)
64,862 65,983

$ lt,otq $ !!J!¿

'.''-..-:
86 191

5,365 5,1'74
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Chalges for services fol govelnmental activities increased overâll by nearly fì0.24 urillion (1.4 Þercenl),
Thele was a Ialger increase in Public Safèty of $0.7 millioD as a resull oflillcd capacity in the innlate rental
prograrn.'l'his was partiaìly olJset lly clecreases of$0.2 nìllion in charges lot setvices iìl thc court services,
as well as $0,2 nlìllion in tr'âìlsllortatio¡r. 'fhis was thc secoDd conseculive year o'r incìeases in genelal
govenrreìlt chârges 1Ìll selvicc I'ollowing loul yea|s ofdeclines in this categor),.

Opcrating grants lor govcrnnrental activitics dccfeased by {ì2.0 million (21 .2 pctccut) duling the yeat. 'fhe

nrost signilicant charge was a decroase in ìlcononlic Developrìrent of !j1.0 ¡rìlìion as a lesult ol thc
cornpletion ol Anrerican llecovery and Reinveslìncr'ìt Act (ARRA) awards l'or thc Wolklorcc lrvcstìrlenl
Act (WlA) plogÌam which clldcd on June 30, 201 1. 'l'hele was another sigìrilìcant clrange in trarlsportâlion,
whcro therc was a decreasc of fì0,77 million in o¡reiating graìrts. 

^dditionally, 
thc nraiority ol-lhe dcctease

in opefating glants fol couft services was clue to the eDding ollhe child support grant ptogtatl tvhich encled

ou ApLil 30, 2012.



. capilaì gr'ânts lòr gover'Írnìen1al act¡vit¡cs incrcased by fì0.54 nrillion durìDg the year. 'Ihis is the rcsull ol'
tlanspol latiorì caPital gfanls lor the highway dcpaltll'ìen1.

. Sales tax revenr¡e had a declcase ol'$0,4 million (5,J percent) flom last fìscal year'. 'l'his lbllou,s a fì0.03
million increase expelieuced in the prior year, and a $ì0.4 milìion increâse two yeârs ago. 'l'he County has

expcrienccd greât voìâtìlity in its sales tax levenrìe ovel flre past seyeriìl yeals. 'l'hree ycars ago. thc Coullly
expcrienccd a dlaslic dcc¡.easc of $1.8 nrillion. Pleviously, saìes tax expclienced tlcÍrds oflalge inclcascs
llour FY2003 to FY2005, and mostly stagDanl growl.h l'¡ onr FY2005 to IrY2008, as evidenced in the
1'ollowìng detail. Sales tax expelienced a smalì inclease of fjO.3 million l'r'orn I'Y2007 to FY2008 pleccded
by a fì0,25 rnilliou declease in the yeal prior. 'l'his recent stagnalion is al'fected by the downtu l irì thc
econolny as well as the slowed g[owlh in the largely succcssful tax lebate ploglau] il]ìlllenlented iu the City
of l(ankal<ee to dlaw more businesscs to tl'ìc area. While the iucrease 1ìom I'Y2005 to FY2006 was only
$0.52 million, sales tax had increased by $1,2 nillion fioul FY2004 to F'Y2005 ard by $1.3 rnillior fionr
FY2003 to IrY2004, giving thc Courìty a 39,5 percerìt Ínclease ovel the two year peliod. Flonr FY2005 to
FY2008, there was a ue1 6.7 polcent inclease.

. Total cxpcndituÌes on tl)e GovennleDt-wide Statenent ol'Activìties weÌe rclativcly stagnant 1ìîr) lhe prioÌ'
year', with only a declease of fì0.6 njllion, although there were yâryiDg Ìâtcs of fluctuation arùongst lhc
govefnrìrcrìlal activitics. The areas ofsignificaDt inclease we¡c in gcncÌal goven]Dlc|lt ($0.7 urillìon), and
public sal'eLy ($1.3 rrillion). Arcas that cxpclieuced decleascs f|onr the prior year ¡ncluded lr'ansportalion
(SìL6 rnillion) and econornic development (lìL0 nrilliou).

Govcr¡ì¡ncntâl 
^clivilics

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

Vo(erans 1rânsportalon Heallh ¡nd
Adm nslration Sa¡rlâlio¡

Econon¡c n(eresl ¿¡d
DevôlôPnron( Jscâlc¡¿roês

t2



Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

lnterest and ltlisc
0o/o

Capital G¡ânts
10/,,

Speciallter¡
0%

Operating Grants
ând Cont.ibutions

14%

Charges for -t--'
Sales Taxes

140/"

Replacer¡enl and
Other Tâxes

5% State lncome Tax
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(ìovelnlnelttal aclivilics decreased the County's ret assets by $1.9 million. In the pr.ior 1Ìscal year, ltct assets
decleased by $1.3 rnìllion, Although therc was a decrease in expenses liom the pliol year of $0.6 milliol; a
dectease in tevenues lìont the p¡-ìor year o1'$1.2 nìllioll contributed to another defic¡t. State incolre tax finally
experietlced a¡t ilìcrcâsc foÌ the second consecutivc year'(fì0.3 nrillion) aftel contiruous declinc in pr.evious ycar.s,
while proper[y taxes cot]tilìued its trend bacl( up as well. Ilowever', sales 1ax and replacerncrìt tax decr.easecl by lì0.4
and $0.I rrillion, rcspectively.

'l'he pleccding cha¡ls illustrate 1l'ìe County's governrnental expcnses and revelues by function and its reveuue by
souÌce Public safèty is the lârgest govemmental expense of the Coulty, f'ollowed by general govenìrÌìelt, colìl.t
setvices, and transllol tafioll. Public safety comprises 41,0 percent oflotâl govefllrnental activities, up lìont 29
Percent eight years ago. Cenetal govelnmerìt incleâsed to 16.8 per-cent of tolal govelnmeltal activities, while
econolnic developnlellt decreased to 4,3 percent due to lhe conrplelion ofexpenses attlibutable to the ARR^ awards
discussed above. Ge¡reral tevenues such as the property, sales, state irìconìe, replacemeÍìt, lnotol fuel, aùd other
taxes are rÌot showÍì by function beÇause fhey ale used to suppoft County-wide progrant activities, Ovcr one-quaflel.,
30 cents ofcvery clollat, ofthe County's reverÌue fol governmelìtal funds colrres fiom property taxes (up lì.our 29
cellts a year ago), and 54 cents ofevcry dollar laised cornes from somc type oftax. 'I'his is an increasc lì.our 52
ceuts in tlìe ptiot year. The pelcent of revenue from fax has changed from 52 celìts three years ago,53 cents four
years ago,55 cents five ycats ago,56 cents six yeals ago (when you retnove the one time spacial ¡ten'ì),60 cents
scvc¡r yeals ago and 63 cclìts eight years ago. Mo|e specilìcally, the pe¡centage of ptopelty taxes funding
govenlmenlâl activities has declcascd Iiom 32 per.cent in IfY2003 to 30 PeÌ.cent in Fy20l2.
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llusincss-Type,,\ctivities

Activities
Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-Type
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Revenues by Source - Business-Type Activities

Charges for Services
1400/"

Ilusilless-type activities increased thc County's rcl assets by !ì0. I nlillion to $5.45 milìion, an incr.ease ol' 1.6
l)elcent.



FINANCI,.A.L ÄNALYSIS OF THE COUNI'Y'S F'UNDS

,As nofcd callicì', the County uses l'rìr]d accountirg to ensule ar'ìd demonstlate comllliancc with financc-rclaled lcgal
requil erlìcÌrts.

Govcl.nmenlâl FuDds

'l-hc focus of the County's govelnnlental 1-unds is to provìde inforn'ration on near-telu) iuiìows, ontflorvs, and
balances of resources available for spending, This infolrnation is useful in assessing the County's financing
recìuirerùelìts. ln particular, assigued and unassigned fund balance rneasL¡r'es the Corìnly's ¡ret ì esouì ccs availal)le lbr
spcnding at the end ofthe fiscal year'. GovemrÌrcr1âl funds repolted try l.hc Counly include tlìe Gene|al ['ìrrrd, special
levent¡e lunds, dcbt selvicc funds, capilal ploject funds, and pelnlalìcnt funds.

A1 lhe end ofthe culrelìt liscal yeal the County's governmeutal funds reported conrbìned endirìg fund balances of
$18.0 nrilljon. Aboul $0.9 lrrillio| (5.1 pelcent) o1'the lì¡nd balance is classilied as rìon-spendâble because ìl is nol
in spendable fornr due to inventories and prepaid items. 'l'he nìajority of the fund [ral¿ìncc, $13,7 million (76.1
percenl). is reslricted; external constlajÌìts have lreen placed on the use o1-the resoulces, Apploximately $2.9 nillion
(16.3 pe|cent) is assigned, wlìjch the County irìtends to use for the lr'anspoflation funclion. ,Approximately $ì0.5
rnillion (2,5 percent) constitutes unassjgned l'und balance, which is available for discretionary spending.

Reverrues for thc govclrlrÌentaI funds ìn 2012 totaled $54.4 rnillioll, ExpenditLrÌes wele $ì59.3 nillìon. OveIall, the
fund balance decreased by $4.2 rnillion lor the year.

'l-hc General Fund is the chiefoperaring lìrncl of the County. lt is corn¡rosed of35 deparlnlcnts: Adnrinistration,
'lìeasuler', County Clerk, lllections, Iìecoldel, Assessments, Board ol'Review, Economic Dcve loÌlr'ìrent, Planuirì9,
Infbnnation Services, Building & Grounds, llealth Insurance, Util¡ties, Contingency, ,Audi1or, Zouing Board of
Âppcals, I-Ì(AN ROII Educational Agleement, Irinance, Capital Development, Cìrcuil Cìerl(, MainLcuancc & Child
Suppoì'|, Circuil Couú, Jury Connrission, State's Attoïcy Office, Public Dcfcuder', Probatior'ì, D.N.D.C., Juvenile
Delention Ccnter, Shcliff Police, CorreÇtions, Auxilialy Poìice, E.S.D.A., Merit Comnrission, Dispatclr Center, ancl

Coroner'.

At the end ol'2012 the fotâl find balance o1'the Genclal Fund (cxcludilg'l'olt) was XiO.6 nrillion. l'he lind balance
decleased by fì0.9 million in 2012. This lbllows ar inclcasc of $0.95 in 2011, pleceded by decleases ol'$0.36
rnillion and fj4.2 nrillio¡ in 2010 and 2009, respectively. 'lhe 1'ollowing chaft illrìstÌâtos thc fund balanccs of thc
General lìund since Þ.Y 2003.

General Fund Balance
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The Tort Liability Fund, reported in the General Fund, ended the year with a fund balance of $l.3 million, which
represents a decrease of $0.6 million ÍÌom the prior fiscal year. This followed no change in FYI I preceded by a
$0.19 rnillion decrease in FYIO and a $0.16 dècrease in FY09. Prior to that, there *"rã d""r"ar", h.om Fy03 to
FY07, with a slight increase in FY08. This represents an overâll 54.3 percent decrease from Fy03 through Fyl l.

On the Govemmental Funds Balance Sheet and Statement of Rcvenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Dalances found on pages 23-24, the general fund activity and tort ftrnd activity áre combined in one cõlumn as the
general ñlnd. GASB l0 states that risk financing activities, such as the Tort Fúnd, should be reported in the general
fu¡d fo¡ financial repofing Purposes. However, for budgeting, accounting, and internal ,"poriing, these funds are
still presented separately. The combined fund balance enãed the year witlia balance of $2.'0 milñán, a decrease of
$1.5 million.

The.Pension Fund, a special revenue fund, is a major fund ofthe County. Fund balance at the end of20l2 was $l.l
million, a decrease of $0.37 million. This followèd an increase of $0.ä7 million in the prior year. prcviously, the
Pension Fund had experienced decreases each year since the end of FY03 when the fund' balance was $4.? million.
Overall, the fund balance ofthe pension fund has experienced a76.4 percent decrease from Fy03 through Fyl2.
Due to the declining fund balance, the percentâgas on the property tax limitation model for 2010 \.vere modilied to
allow for the additional revenue to the pension Fund.

The final major fund for the County is the County Highway Fund. The fund closed the year with a $3.2 million
balance. This represents S0.4 million increase in the County Highway Fund.

Propr¡ctary Funds

The County's proprietary funds provide lhe same bpe of information found in the government-wide financial
statements but in more detail.

911 Syslem Fce Fund. This fund also qualified as a major fund of Kankakee Counry. Net assets at the end ofthe
year amounted to $5.1 million. Of this amount, $1.2 million is invested in capibl àssets, net of related debt and
$0.25 million is restricted for debt service. The remainder, $3.6 rnillion, is unróstricted. Total net assets inc¡eased
by $0.07 million during the year.

Animal Control There was a net asset balance of $355,838 at the end of the fiscal year. This reÞresented ân
increase of $15,769. Of the total,937,442 is invested in capiøl assets, net of related iebt and the iemainder of
$3 18,396 is unreshicted.

Fiduciary F unds

The County maintains fiduciary ftnds for the assets of others in various Private Purpose Trust Funds and Agency
Funds. Total net assets in the Fiduciary funds a¡e $2.8 million, a net decrease of $0.2;illion from last year.

GENER,A,L F'UND BU.DGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

At the end ofthe fiscal yea¡, the County-Board revised the County budget due to emergency issues. Changes were
T-.J9 ,t !_19 

end of the year to accounJ for_unexpected expendituies. The original Gen-eralÎund revenue b-udget of
$31.3 million was increased to $33.6 million. The expõnditure budget of õ30.6 Inillion was inc¡eased to $32.gmillion.

The increase in the General Fund revenues was due to several facto¡s including increased sales tax revenues, state
income tax revenues, new grant alvards, and the increased inmate housing rentali.

Departrnents with inc¡eases to their original expenditure budget include Management Infomation Systems
(112,99Ð, Board of Review ($6,000), Administration ($23,000), Elecrion commisiion (ss5,500), counry cterk
($4'500), Buildings and Grounds ($622,000), capitai Develópmenr ($123,000), county 

'rreáiurer 
lir,ooo¡,

P^9*Ti! P"uAopment ($29,000), public Defender ($?,000), probation ($34,00ô), DNDô ($26,000), Sheriffs
office ($336,000), conections ($t,274,000), coroner ($69,000), Merir commission (bz,ooo¡ and ESD.4 ($38,000).

ló



Several of these budget a¡nendments came frorn tlìe budget of $200,000 in coutingency. Othe¡ s were co¡npensated
by dePaÉlnents with decreases to their orìginal budget includirrg Finance ($10,000), l.lealth lnsurance (SZSO,OOO),
Utilities (fì50,000), Planning ($3,000), and Disparoh Services ($50,000).

As revetlues fell shorl of budgeted expectations, the budget variance for levenues and other financing sour.ces was
$0.8 million unde¡ the final budgeti while expenditures resulted in a valiance of$0.5 million over final budget. The
largest varjances of revenues were circuit clerk fees and inlnate housilg and reilnbutsenìents, which each came ilt
$0.2 Inillion under budgol, Additionally, tlìe grants and other reimbursements, and county fines and forfeìtures each
came in $0.1 million under budget. For the expenditures, thore was ¡Ìot a lot of variance between tho final budget
and actual expenditures, The most substantial negative variance was $0.67 million in Capìtal Development and
$0,27 nillion in Corrections, Significant positive differences between budgeted expenditures and actual
expenditures were in l{ealth Insurance of $0.08 milÌion, Circuit Clerk of $0.08 million, and State's Attornev of
$0.16 million.

CAPITAL ASSETS & DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Câpital Assets

The County of Kankakee's investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities as of
November 30,2012, amounts fo $66.9 million (net ofaccumulated depreciation). This investment ir capital assets
includes the transportation network, land, construction in progress, buildings and improvements, buildings and
improvements under capital lease agreements, leasehold improvements, equipment, equipment under capital lease
agreements, and vehicles. The total decrease in the County's investment in capital assets for the cuffent fiscal year
was 1.8 percent (a 2.0 percent dec¡ease for govenìmental activities and a 3.9 percent increase for business-type
activities).

The following schedule shows the County's investment in capital âssets.

Exhibit 3
Capital Assets ât Ycar Dnd, Nct of Deprcciâtiotr (In Thousands)

Busincss-Type
Govcrnmental Activities Activities Total

2012 20lt 2012 2011 20tZ 2011

Transportation Nehvork
Land
Constluction in Progress
Intangible Assets
Building - idle
Buildings and Improvements
Buildings and Improve¡nents under
capital lease agreements
Leasehold improvements
Equipmel)t
Equipment under capital lease

agreements
Vehicles

Total Capitâl Asscls

s t4,6'12 $ t s,606 $

920 920 6t
1,104 526 382
|.446 1,341

t,7'10 I,'t70
37,394 38,250

3,093 3,243

$ - $ 14,672 $ 1s,606
6t 98 t 981
- 1,486 526
- |,446 1,341
- t,770 1,770
- 37,394 38,250

3,093 3,243
L9'Ì tg'l

3,ó80 4,545

24 30
2,126 1 ,592

t,õza 2,504

2,126 |,592

J_ i!a4e_ _$_Éll!2

Åt Åt
I,',t56 2,041

24 30

s 2,420 g 2,329 $ 66,869 $ 68,081
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Major capital asset clìanges thaI occulred during 2012 include the follorving:

Intarlgible assets of$0.1 nìiliion were added for the IJIS project, and construction in progress increased by $0.6
million. EquiprneDt of $0.2 ¡nillion and vehjcles of $1,0 million were added, in addition to $0.2 million to the
transporlation network and $0.5 lnillion to building imprôvements. The vehicles wele paltially offset by $0.3
lnillion in retirements. Regarding business-type activities, $0,4 million ofconstruction in progress was addcd.

More detaiì about tlìe County's capital assets is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements.

Long-tcrm Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County of Kankakee had lotal debt outstandiDg of S25.4 million. This
oncompasses $24,2 million outstarding long+erm debt in gove¡nme¡ìtal activities and $1.4 million outstanding long-
telm debt jn business-l.ypc activities. This represents a decrease of approximately $1.2 million (4.7 per.cent) in
gôvernmental activities and a decrease ofapproxinately $0.2 million ( 15.5 percent) in business-type activities,

Tbe following schedule shows the County's long-term debt.

Exhilrit 4
Outstandi¡rg Long-term Debt at Year End (In Thousands)

Debt Certificafes
Bonds - General Obligation
Loan / Lease Agreement
Capital Leases

Bonds - Alternate Revenue Source
Compensated Absences

Tofal

The compensated absences calculation required the reporting of additional liability amounts for governmental
activities, which was partially offset by some retirements. There was also an addition to capital leases for
govemmental activities as vehicles were purchased. Additionally, debt ceìlificates were retired and refinanced with
lower interest rates as general obligation bonds. rlccordingly, there were sizable retirements to debt ceíificates and
additions to general obligation bonds.

Regarding business-type activities, the County retired $230,000 in bonds and a portion of the Animal Control
vehicle lease.

More detailed infôrmation about the County's long-term liabilities is presented in Note ? to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAIì'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The County's General F'und revenue budget for 2013 increasecl 4.75 percent to approximately $32.E million íiom
the original FYl2 budget; wbile the expenditure budget for 2013 increased likewise. Accordingly, most of the
revenues are budgeted at similar levels to 2012. Slight shifts include dec¡eases in tlìe budget for propeíy tax ($0.1ó
million), replacement tax ($0, l5 million), and some grants, Conversely, increases were budgeted for out of county
inmate rental (S1.4 million), state income taxes ($0.23 million), and orher grants.

On the expenditure side there were slight variations ñom the 2012 budget. Expenditures for elections are budgeted
to be reduced by $0.13 million from the level budgeted for the nìajol elections of 2012. IncÌoases to the budget
include a S0.2 Inillion inc¡ease in Buildings and Grounds, $0.37 milliou increase in Capital Developrnent, S0.13

I8

$ ó,789 $ 10,821 $
13,089 t0,109

175 175

3,524 3,'100 t'7

1,165

6t I 565 3't

2011 2012

$ $ 6,789
_ 13,089

- t75
24 3,54t

1,395 1,t65
24 648

20rt

$ 10,821

10,109

t75
3,'724

t,395
589



million increase in Circuil Clerk, $0,09 million increase to Probation, a $.ll million increase to the Sheriff
Departrnent, and a $0.39 million increase to tho Conections Depaftment.

The budget proiects for expenditures equal to revenues in fìscal year 2013.

The followjng are other factors that could play a role in the actual outcome of next year's budgeted fìgures:

The last general election was in November 2012. Although none of the County offices that werc on [he ballot
changed leadership, there \ryere several new County Board members. Additionally, several local Statc and Federal
offices changed leadership.

On February 17, 2009, President Obama signed the American RecoveÌy and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). ARRA
increased funding for the 'ùy'orkforce lnvestment Act (WIA), of which our area, serving Grundy, Livingston, and
Kankakee Counties received an additional $2.7 million to provide job training in those three counties. These funds
continued to be expended through June 30,2011. The County received an Energy Efficiency Block Grant through
ARRA funds which ended during FY12. Additionally, the County also received an ARRA Drug Prosecution Grant
and an ARRA Integrated Infonnation Systems Grant \ryith funding continuing info Fyl3,

The union contracts with FOP Probation, FOP Deputies, and ETSB 9l I ended November 30,2012 and negotiations
are ongoing. The union contract with Correctiors that lìad ended November 30,2010, was finalized in October
2012. The union conbact for Teamsters (Maintenance) ended at the end ofFY08 and while negotiations had been
ongoing, an agreement was ¡eached in April 2013. Additionally, the Coroner's Office unionization process has been
finalized with a conÍact signed in April20l3 as well.

Sales tax revenue continües to be an issue as the County remains in litigation. Progess is being made as most ofthe
funds held at the Department of Revenue were recouped in 201 l. However, the long term viability of the sales rax
program noted in the Government Wide Financial 

^nalysis 
section is questionable as pending legislation may

greatly affect that program.

Kankakee Community College is undergoing a north campus expansion with a $10 million investment. The new
campus is expected to be open for Fall 2014 courses. Olivet Nazårene University invested $?2 million into its new
chapel and student life center, which are both open.

The Illinois Army National Guard is still working on plans to build a S48 million Readiness Center and Army
Aviation Support Facility at the Greater Kankakee Airyon. This project will potentially add ?5 full time jobs anã
approximately 200 troops will be trained at this location,

The Chicago Bears continue to hold their summer fiaining camp with Olivet Nazarene University in Bou¡bonnais.
This event has increased tourist travel into the County in late July and early August, which can lead to an inc¡ease in
sales tax revenue.

Regarding trânsportation, the exit 315 interchange of Interstate I-5? is undergoing a $54 million reconfiguration
during a two year project that began in 20I I and is expected to be completed later this year. The Illiana Conidor, a
project that would connect I-65 in Indiana to I-55 in Illinois is under review. The Bi-State Cornmission stüdying
this project announced that the prefened coffidor is 83, which would cross approximately two miles north of
Kankakee County. A decision is still expected to be made in 2013. Another local transportation project is the I-57
interchange at 6000 N Rd, This $55 million project could begin in 2014.

In February 2009, the president of Vision Energy presented a proposal to fhe Kankakee County Planning
Commission of a 33,000 acre, $ I billion dollar wind farm encompassing parts of four Illinois counties. The projecì
proposes to build and operate over 300 wind turbines ând employ as many as 250 construction and 40 full+ime
operal.ions and maintenance wo¡kers. A three year extension was granted on this project, and planning is ongoing,

Kankakee Counry has proven to be a viable market for expanding companies. The Kankakee Counry Waste Water
Treatment Plant is undergoing a $60 million capital investment with construction beginning in May 2013. Kinder
Morgalt is expanding its local sile \.vith a $60 million investment, This is beginning in May 2013 resulting in 200
consfiuction jobs, Ring Container is expanding with a $3.5 mjllion warehouse expansion project expected to

l9



include 9 new jobs, Precisionaire Inc. in the eastem parl. of the County is undergoing a 40,000 square foot
warehouse expansion with a $12 million investment. Dawn Foods ìs cxperiencing a productiou line expansion
resulting in 25 new jobs. Other sources of expansion in our area include A|mstroug World hrdusfies with a
6700,000 invesltnent inlo plant cqp¡tql qnd retqining ils current workforce, Peddinghaus with a ï500,000 investnent
into remodeling and upgrades, Agreliant with a $450,000 capital investment, and Cornerstone Services, Inc. with a
$l million capital iDvestment and 35 newjobs.

Additionally, Kankakee County continues to be a destination for new national chains, with Panera Bread, Olive
Garden, Popeyes, Noodles and Company, and Texas Roadhouse opening in the past year. The t¡end is expected to
continue,

Outside consultants completed a space needs study for the County offices. While it is evident that âddilional space
is waranted, the County is pursuing various cost effective methods to resolve these issues. However, one step has
been taken in early 2013 due to the space needs. The State's Aftomey's office has moved fiom various locations in
both the courthouse and annex building, and is now leasing space in a nearby building. This has allowed the Public
Defender's Office to relocate to the vacated space in the annex building. Additionally, the suitability oftbe existing
courthouse is still in question due to numerous violafions ofthe Americans with Disabilities Act. This is in addition
to the fact that an additional circuit court judge was assigned to the aheady tight facility at the Kankakee County
Courthouse. The move by the State's Attorney's offics will help with these issues, but a thorough evaluation ofthe
space continues.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIA.L MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general ovcrview ofthe County's finances ând to demonstrate the County's accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this repoft or need additional financial information, contact the Kankakee County
Finance Depafment, 189 E. Couft St. Suite 300, Kankakee, IL 60901.
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Kankakcc County, Illinois
Statcncnt ofNet Asscts
November 30, 2012

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activit¡es Iotal
Component

Unit
Assets

Cash

Cash - restricted

Investments, at cost

Receivables, (net, where applicable
of allowance for uncollectibles):
Taxes, including interest, penalties and liens
Accounts
Loans

Due from other governments

Prepaid expenses

Inventory, ât cost

Bond issuance costs, net ofamortization
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities ând Nct Assets
Liabilities

Vouchers and accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Payable fiom restricted assets

Deferred revenue

Noncur¡ent liabilities:
Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net Asscts

lnvested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Restricted for:
Debt service

Capital projects

Other purposes (enabling legislation)
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$ 7,t63,721

6,897,t97

16,802,506

6,s24,432
239,226

1,348,871

340,744

6 t 3,401

288,445
64.449.389

8 1,666,764

277,t82
2,039,9t I

t2t,413

qø2,5'1s

8,251

tt,4t4
2,420,063

$ 8,830,485

2't'1,102

8,93 7,108

16,802,506

6,645,845
239,226

l,8l I,449
348,99s

6 r 3,401

299,859
66,869,452

489,369

I,797 ,468
l I I,ó00

3t'7

34,458

2l

S t04,667s:¿ -s 7,007,4% $ r r t"6?s/rs $ L4n2n

$ 4,202,580
1,6't2,st1

t7 ,018,53?

1,893,433

22,294,204
47,08t,26s

4t,962,453

566,67 |

462,t93
t3,'17 5,209

820,141

57,s86,667
s 104,66',t ,932

$ r 9r,7l3
tzt,234
23,5-86

238,106
981,401

1,556,040

t,238,259

253,5-16

3,9s9,6E l
s,4sr As6g 7 ,007,496

s 4,394,293
t,'193,745

23,586
t 7,01 8,537

2,131,539
23,275,605
48,637 ,305

43,200;tt2

820,187

462,193
t3,77 5,209
4;179,822

63,03 8,123

_q-l!!,fz¡p!_

$ 45,465

1s,028

95,000

2,0t5,493

4t7,7 t9
4t't;tt9

$ 2,433,2t2

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Kankåkee Countv, Illinois
St{tement of Activities
For the Year Ended NovembeÌ 30.2012

Fu¡ctions/hoga[Ls:
P¡i[rary gove¡runeûti

Govemmentål act¡vities

Gene¡al govemment

Court services

Public sâfeq/

He¿lth and sa¡itâtion
Trdsporiaúon
Veterå¡s administ¡atioo

Economic developme¡t

Interest ând fiscål cha¡ges

îotal governme al activities

Business-gTre activities

911 Emerge¡cy services

Animâl cônEol

Totål business-type activities

Tot¿l primary goveflment

CornpoDent urlit:
Ka¡kakee Cou¡ty Public Bu ding Commission

P¡ogam Revenues

Charges for ope¡"d;glto"ts c"tñ-
Services a¡d Cont¡ibutions Grants

9,483,436

9463,t67
23,087,317

3,395,624

7,250.004

230,436
2,430,630

$ 2,357,136

2,6s0.993
r 1,3t9,076

305,01t
422,298

I,014,444 - tl1t4444\
56-355.058 17.054.514 7.499.t34 562.712 r3l23R 6Ssì

2,747,n7
276278

3,023,515

s 534,982

1,t65,37 5

366,r41
2,0tE,720

t,02s302
49,361

2.269.247

___l2ll!ll¡_ _L2qëq¡É_ J_J_.Aee!]3_ _g___f:Jt'

_!_-_19!l?L J____r2023!_ _r____________j_ _!_____-j_

Gene¡al revenues:

T¿xes

Properry l2xes

S¿les tzv

St¿¡e incoûe tåx
Replaæment ard other taxes

hterest
Miscellaneous

Specia-l itvn-gain (loss) oD disposal ofassets
Total general revenues and special items
Cha¡ge in net assels

Net assets - begituing
Net assets - eriding

t e1ô ¡¿o

29t,67 3

3,101,822

See accompa¡yi¡g notes to the b¿sic financiãl sta¡ements-

- I (6,591,318)

- (5,646,199)
- (1r,402,a94)

- (r,001,893)

562;712 (5,239,692)
- (181,07s)

- (16r,383)

Actl\ttles Activities Government Unit

Bùsiness-T!?e TotâlP¡imary Component

s 62,912
t5lq5
7E307

(31238,698) 78,307

$ (6,591,318)

(s,646,799)
(r |,402,094)

(1,001,893)

(s,239,692)
(181,075)

(161,3r3)

(3r,238,698)

t6,528,453
1Ags,321
2,521,619
2.494,507

2rJ,903

220,617

56,E54

29,32E274
(1,910,424)

59,497.091

62,912
t{ ?q{

78307

(31,160,391)

s 57.586 661

E,380

8,380

86,681

5.364,769

$ s7,586,691 $ 5,451,456 S 63,038,t23 S 4t7,719s s7,586,

16,52E,453

7,485321
2,521,619

2,494,507

29"283

220.6t1
56,854

29,336,654

(1,823,737)

$ I I, 2

ø,661"860 404,214

1.6-33

1,633



I(ânlúkcc Counfv, tlliDois
Bålâ[cc Shccf
(;ovcrnrìcntÂl Funds
Novcùbcr 30, 20I2

Ceneral

Fund Pe¡sion

$ 236,06t S 242,744

15,031

7,021,157 5,042,'t7t
s,966,786 145,675

120,22't
46,06 | 1,42s,000

163,43'l-3'i1î8,t¡õ- -$--38óltõ-

Othsr Total
County Covgrn¡nontal Coverrìmelltal
Ilighway Funds Funds

$ 1,668,065 $ s,016,85r S ',|,163,121

I,289,6'77 5,592,489 6,897,191

Ásscts

Cash

Investments, at cost

Receivables (net of applicable
allowances for oslitìtaled

uncollectiblo a¡rounts):
'laxos, includillg irf cresl,

penâlties, afld liens
Accounts

Loans
Prepaid expenses

Duc frorn other funds
Due from other govemments

Inventory, at cosl
Total asseis

l,iabilifies ând Fund Bâlânccs
Liabiliticsl

Vouchers and accounls payablc

Due to other funds
Defe¡red revcnue

Total liabilities

F¡¡nd balancesl

Non-spendable:
Prepâid items

lnvenlory
Iìestricted fôr:

Gelìeral govemme¡t

Ðcbt service

Judiciary and cout
Public safety
Health and welfare
Transportation

Economic development
Retirement
'Ion liability/clâìms
Câpital projects

Assigncd to t¡ansporlahon
Unassigned
Tofal firnd balance
Total liabilities a¡d fund balance

1,854,616

193,948

2 ,;04

_l-_l?lzÍ1!_

2,883,962

430,913

239,226

20,5t'7
1,2t2,390

422,068

198,660

_I_-tqqz.9t6

16,802,50ó

6,13't,322
239,226

340,744
2,683,4s1

422,068

613,40t
$ 41.899.636

s 2,019,121 $ 652,512 $ 187,3?4 S |,298,',t'.t4 $ 4,157,781

2,631,390 46,061 2,683.4st
7,138,228 s,082,642 1,869,686 2,92't,981 17,018,537

11,'794,'t39 5,135,154 2,051,060 4,2',72,816 23,859,769

320,227
163,43'7

- 4,503
251,304 t78,493

324,130
593,234

632,685 632,685

566,6'1 566,611

1,448,304 1,448,304

133,024 133,024

2,t65,684 2,t65,684
5,612,t98 5,612,198

540,505 540,505

- 1,121,036

- 1,038,404

462,t93 462,193
- 2,949,246

451,953

t1,'744,260 18,039,86?

$ t6,01?,076

- l,12l,016
r,038.404 

_ _

2,949,246
45 t.953

t.n[,ort rJ¡¡36 1200J50

Å_ElÉ91É0 _I__i.qq2g_ _I__lltzflo

Amourìts reported fbr govemrnental activities ln the statement olnet assets are different becausel
Caprtâl asscts used in govemmcntal activities âre not financtal resources and, therefore, are not repoled

in thc funds as assets

Bond issue cosls, net ofamorlizalion, are not fìnanciâl resources ând, therefore, âre not repor1cd

64,449,389

in the ft¡nds as assots 288,445
LoDg-tem liabilities, including liâbìlitiss for retirement obligations, are not due and payablo in tho cuûeít

poriod and therefore, are uot repo¡led as a fund liability in govcmmcntal funds... ... .... ...
Full accrual accounliug arìd modilied accrual âcoounting use diffcring rgveùue a¡d expense

rccognilion crileria.....
Net assets of govemmentfìl activitics... ... ... ..

See accornpanylng notes to ths basic financial stâtements-
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Kanlükec Coun ty, Illinois
Statenrertt of Revenucs, Expeuditurcs, and Cllângcs in Fund Balanccs
Goverunlental Fulds
For the Yeal. Ended Novcnrbcr 30, 2012

$ r 4,491,816

5,533,436

t3,93'ì,t33
355,052

7 t9,262
'ì qrq

o1 '1)t
35,ßrn

t2,753,742

5,7 6s,869
15,283,2_6t

161,383

873,549

980,838

4t3,668
36,232,310

( 1,099,958)

I 3,5 l6
(t ,07 8,67 6)
3,ó90,000

673,604
59,569

(3,672,287)
(7',1,282)

(391,556)

$ 4,796,874
50,299

àuu

4,847,839

5,204,894

County
llighway

$ 1,812,990

7?4,808

t,tzs
93,876

2,633,399

2,024,t41

219,890

2,244,031

s 2,912,094
?,230,603

186,873

1,372,874

14,5 83

106,218

I t,823,245

356,525
1,569,701

335,857

2,7 67 ,472
4,6 80,083

2,269,24',7

2,082,289

983,479

s 8 8,7ss
15,ó33,408

(3,810,163)

1,393,272
(328,112\

1,065,160

$ 24,0t3,7't4
12,8 14,3 3 8

t4,66t,94t
541,925

2,092,t36
20,903

291,818

54,436,835

18,3 15, l6l
7,335,570

15,619, r r8
2,767,472

6,'7 04,224

2,430,630
3,t7 5,728
I,964,3t7
1,0t4,444

59,326.664

General

Fund

Olher Total
Gôvernmental Govemmental

I'unds Funds
Revenues:

Taxes

Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeits
Interest on investmeÌrts

Misce llaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General govemment

Judiciary and couÍ related
Public safety

Heâlth and welfare
'l'ransportation

Economic development
Capital outlay
Debt service principal
Debt service interest

Total expenditures

Excess (defi ciency) of ¡evenues

over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from refunding bonds
Proceeds ÍÌom long-term debt
Premium on bonds sold
Refunded debt proceeds

paid to escrow agent
Cost ôfissuance of Iong-tem debt

Totâl other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fuud balances

Fund balances, beginning ofyear
Fund balances, end ofyear

(369,076) 389,368

(r,49 r,s r4) (369,076) 3 89,3 68

3,465,535 I ,490,112 2,811,t82
g r,9'14,02t $ r,121,036 $ 3,200,ss0

(2,74s,003) (4,2r6,22s)

14,489,263 22,2s6,092
s tl,144,260 $ 18,039,867

t2,02r
5,216,915

(4,889,829)

1,406,788
( r,406,788)

3,690,000

673,604
59,569

(3,612,287)

(77 ,282)

673.604

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial stâtements 24



Kankakec Counfy, llliuois
Rcconciliation of the Sfâtcnlent of Rcvcnucs, Expcllditurcs, atld Changcs iu Fund
llalanccs of Governmcntal Funds to thc Statcmcnl of Àcfivifics

For thc Ycar Endcd Novcrubcr 30,2012

Net change in fund balances - total goverrunental funds S (4,216,225)

Amounts reported for govemmental acfivitics in the statement of activities are different because:

The issuauce oflong-term debt and refunding bonds, including premiums, is reflected
as other financing sources on the fund level statements, but is repofted as an
addition to liabilities on the enfily wide statements ( 4,423,173\

The refunded debt proceeds paid to escrow ager'ìt ale reflected as other financing uses on
the fund level statements, but are reported as a reduction to liabilities on the entity wide
stâtements 3,67Z,Zgj

Unamortized debt issue costs and discount related to defeased debt were expensed on tlìc
entity wide statements, but not repofied on the fund level statements (36,75g)

The payment ofprincipal on long-term debt is reflected as ân expense on the fund level
statements, but is reported as a reduction ofliabilities on the entity wide statements 1,964,317

Debt issue costs are reflected as other financing uses on the fund level statements, but are
repofted as ân âddition to other assets on the entify wide statements 77,Zgz

Amortization of debt issue costs, premiums, discounts, and defered charges on refunding
is not ¡eflected on the fund level state¡nents, but is reported as an expense on the
entity wide statements (657)

The current period change in compensated absences does not require or provide
curent financial resources and, therefore, is not ¡eported in govemlnental funds 3j,225

Change in pension obligation resulting from contributions paid at a rate less
than the required rate is not reported on the fund level statements (173,177)

Depreciation on capitâl assets and losses on the sale ofassets are not reflected
on the fund level statements, but are reported as an expense on the entity wide statements (3,799,381)

The acquisitioD ofcapitâl âssets is repoÍed as ân expense on the fund level statements, but
is capitalized âs an asset on the entity wide statements Z,4gg,4g7

Full accrual accounting and modified accrual accounting use differing revenue and
expense recognition criteria Z,4gg,33g

Change in net asscts ofgovemmental activities - entify wide staternents

Sec accompanying notes to the basic financial statemenfs,

_$ll=2]!4!"
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Kankakcc Courrty, Illinois
Statemcrrt of Net Asscfs
ProprictâÌy Furds - Eìtcr.pr.isc F unds
Novcnrbcr 30,2012

Enterplise Funds
911 Systerr Other Elfer-

Fee Fund Þrise Funds Total
Asscts
Cu¡aent assets

Cash

Cash - restricted
Investments

Accounts receivable
Receivable froln other govemments

Prepaid expenses

Total cunent assets

Propeny, plant, and equipment
Property ând eqùipment
Accumulated depreciation

Net properfy, plant, and equipment

Bond issue costs, net and other assets

Total assets

Liabilitics
Cunent liabilities

Current poftion - long-term debt
Vouchers and accounts payable

Payable iÌom restricted assets

Accrued wages and benefits
Total current liâbilities

Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt, net ofcuffent portion
Accrued sick time

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Net asscts

lnvested in capital assets, net ofrelated debl
Restricted for debt service (expendable)
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities ând net assets

$ r,506,282

277,t02
I,853,234

80,598

462,5',78

8,251

4,188,045

6,887,049
(4,szt,232)
2,365,8r7

1t,4t4

J_Ss6)276

s 230,000
t22,135
23,586

t21,234
496,955

935,000

37;703

972.703

$ 160,482

186,677

40,8 l5

387 ,97 4

r7 4,471
(120,22s)

54,246

$ 8,106

69,578

'77,684

8,698

$ 23 8,106

t9t,7 t3
23,586

t2t,234
57 4,639

943,698
37 ,7 03

981,401

s I ,666,7 64

277,t02
2,039,9t1

t?t,413
462,57I

8,251

4,s7 6,0t9

7 ,06t ,s20
(4,64t,4s7)
2,420,063

I I,414

_p-J4220_ _ïJ!9U25_

8,698
|,469,658 86,382 1,556,040

1,200,8 t 7 3't ,442 t,238,259
253,516 - 253,5t6

3,64t,285 318,396 3,959,681
5,095,618 355,838 5,451,456

J_ q!t27j_ J__ i!2220 J_l_go7Ae6

See accompanying notes l.o the basic financial staternents, 26



Kankakce County, Illinois
Statenlent of Revenues, Expenscs, and Changes in Nct Asscts
Proprietary Fuuds - Enterprise Funds
l-or the Year Dndcd November 30, 2012

Entelprise Funds
9l I System Other Enter-

Fee Fund prise Funds Total
Operating revenues:

Charges for services and other lees
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personal services
Contractual services
Supplies and malerials
Other services and charges

Depreciation and amortization expense
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income
lnterest expense

Net nonoperating revenue (loss)

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning ofyear

Net assets, end ofyear

$ 2,806,698

3,451

2,810,149

1,949,410

324,121

4,306
98,525

313,292
2,689,7 t4

120,435

8,006
(s7,523)
(49,s17)

70,91 I

5,024,700

$ 287,427

4,246

291,673

184,361

36,978
t9,382
27,960

5,819

274,500

17,r73

374
( 1.7'18\
( t.404\

1\ 1Áq

s 3,094, t25
7,697

3,101,822

2,133,83 I
36t,099
23,688

126,485

319,111

2,964,214

r 37,608

8,3 80

(s9,301)
(s0,e2l )

86,687

5,364,'769340.069

Note: 911 system Fee Fund revenues are pledged for payment ofalternate revenue source bonds.

_$__L92:f1!_ _q____1:1jt¡_ r_l5l/51

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements 27



Kankakce Couniy, Illinois
Stafcment of Cash Flows
Proplictary Funds - Ilntorpt.ise Fund fypcs
For thc Ycal Endcd Novc¡nbcr.30. 2012

Ertterprise Funds
9l I SystoDl

Fee Fund

Otlrer Erìter

ise Funds Totâl
Cash flows florn operal¡ng activ¡tìes:

Receipts frorn customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Internal activity - paynìents from (to) other funds
Other receipts

Net cash provided (used) by ope¡ating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Intersst payments on long-term dabt
Payments on long-lerrn debt
Purchase ofequipment

Net cash flows provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from invesfing activ¡lies:
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Interest incom€

Net cash flows provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash investments

Cash and cash investments, begirning ofyear

Cash and cash investments, end ofyear

Reported on balance sheet as cash

lncluded in balance sheet investments

Reconciliation ofoperating income (loss) to net eash
provided (used) by operâting activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
câsh provided from operating activities:

Depreciation expense

Amoñization ofbond issue costs

Changa in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts leceivable/prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries and benefits
Increasc (decrease) in other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notos to thc bâsic fina¡cial statements.

s 2,127,614
(913,s7 4)

(t,394,248)
867,946

3,451

69r,189

(61,9?8)
(230,000)

(407 ,17 8)

(699,1s6)

( l,853,547)
2,s82,697

8,006

737,t56

729,189

1,054,19s

_!__1J!it!1_

$ 1,783.384

_q___uË$4

$ 120,435

3t0,424
2,869

180,611

24,165
52,685

$ 691 ,189

$ 3l1,3 t4
(66,418)

(r 84,36 r)
(2s7)

4,246

64,524

(1,778)
(7,s55)

(9,3 3 3)

$ 160,482

t86,677

_!___3ru2_

s 17,t73

5,819

tl o?ì
17,609

s 64,s24

$ 1,943,866

t86,677

_q__?J:!r1¡_

$ 137,608

3\6,243
2,869

204,534

4t,'17 4

52,685

_$___ëlI:_

28

$ 2,438,928
(9't9,992)

(1,s78,609)

867,689

7,697

755,713

(63,7 s6)

Q3'r,sss)
(407,1?8)

(708,489)

( 1,8s3,547)

2,582,697

8,3 80
'737,530

784,7 54

291,594 1,345,789

_q____¡!12_ _$__¿ti9I13

3',74

374

55.s65



Kankakee County, Illinois
Statcmcnt of tr'iduciary Net Asscts
Fiduciary l'unds
Novcnber 30,2012

Private Purpose

Trust Funds

Agency
Irunds

Asscts

Cash

Investments, at cost
Receivables:

Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liabilities and Nct Assets

Liabilitics
Vouchers payable

Due to:
Other governments

Othels

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Restricted for other purposes

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net âssets

$ 1,061,288 S 2,t20,229
t,699,026 309,995

95,t57 177,383

g 2,8ss,4'i1 $ 2,607,607

$ 21,423 $ 9,001

- 33,382
- 2,565,224

2t.423 2,607,607

2.834.048
2,834.048

$ 2,8ss,47 | g 2,601 ,607

See accompanying Dotes to the basic f¡nancial statements 29



Kankakee County, Illinois
Statcnrent of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assels
Fiduciary Funds
For thc Year Flndcd November 30, 2012

Additions:
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Interest

Total additions

Deductions:
Transportation
Other

Total deductions

Change in ne1 assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end ofyear

Private Purpose

Tlust F'unds

$ 1,351,576

1,704,586

|,947

3,058,109

|,548,023
|,704,100

3,252,723

(194,614)

3.028.662

$ 2,834,048

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



Kankakee County, llliuois
Notcs to Båsic Financial Statemcllts

¡!spþ141 for t[c ycar c¡rdcd Novcrnbcr 30, 2012

Note I - I'he Fitra¡ìcial Rcporting Entify

Kankakee County, Illinois is a rnunicipal corporation fomed in 1853 operating under the county board form of
goverl'ìnìeDt. The Boald of T¡ustees cons¡sts of twenty-cight members and is the legal and executivc body ofthe
County. In addition, there are eight other elected administÌative officials, each of whom is independent as set fonh in
Illinois law. These officials are CleÌk of Couüs, Auditor, Coroner, Prosccuting Attonìey, Recorder, Sherifl Treasur.er
and County Clerk,

The County's basic fìnancial statements include accounts of all ofhcìals described above and all other County
operations, The County's major operations include human selvices, social and economic development services, caÍait.l
health care and community assistance services, public safety, a civil and criminal justice system, road and bridge
mailttenance and general administrative services,

Componcllt Units: As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the financial statements ofthe
repoÍing entity include those of Kankakee County, the primary govemmenl, and its componerìt units. The County
comPlies with the provisions of Govenìmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No, 14, in defining the
reporting entity. Component units are legally separate organizâlions for which the elected officials ofthe County are
financially accountable. Organizations for which the County is accountable because it appoints a majority ofthe voting
board, but is not financially accountable for its operations, are related organizations, Financial information of
component units is blended with that of Kankakce County where, among other criteria, the nature of services rende¡ed
by thc component unit is almost exclusively for the benefit of the County or where the governing body of the
component unit is substantìally the sâme âs that of the County. Componert unit fiDancial information that is not
blended with that ofthe County ¡s discretely presented in a separate column on the Counfy's government wide financial
stalements. A general description ofthe component unifs and related organiz¿tions follows:

Componenl Unils - Discretelv-Drcscnted

The Kankakee County Pubtic Building Commission is a separate municipal corporation created for the purpose of
acquiring or enhancing public buildings or facilities, The Commissioners are appointed by and serve at the pleasure of
the Chairman ofthe County Board. Because of its âppointment powers, the County includes the Commission in its
financial stalements as a discretely-presented component unit using their fiscal year end October 31,2012. The
Commission issues separate financial statements which are on file at the Office ofFinance Director, Kankakee County,
189 E. Court St., Suite 300, Kankakee, Illinois 60901. The County Board is not financially responsible for obligations
ofthe Commission unless any such improvements are for its benefit.

The Kânkakee County Health Dcpârtmcnt is an lllinois govemmental entily, which is govemed by an eight-member
board, appointed by the County, which also approves its budget. The Health Departrnent's hnancial statements are
blended with those of the County because of ûe degree of control the County carì exercise over its âctivities. Its
transactions are accounted for in the I{ealth Fund, a special revenue fund.

The Vcterans Assistance Co¡nmission is a central assistance committee composed ofone delegate ûom each County
post to oversee assistance to military veterans and their families. The oversight is shared by the Chairman of the
County Board or his designee. Under Illinois law, the County is to provide office space, phone and supplies for the
Commission and payment of assistance claims, Because of its oversight powers and the economic burden this
requirement places on the County, its transactions are accounted for in the Veterans Assistance Fund, a special revenue
fund.

The Kankakec Coünty Emergency TclcphoDc Systcm Board is created by the Counry Board which also defines its
powers and duties. This Board of nìne members, four of whom may be members ofthe County Board, oveßees the
implementation and opcralions ofthe emergency telophone system. Currently, no County Iloard members serve on this
Board, Because it has reserved powers, the operations are accounted for in the 9l I System Fee Proprietary Fund which
is blended witlì other County funds.

ll



Kankakce County, Illirrois
Notcs to Basic Financial Statemcnfs
As of and for thc ycâr cnded November 30, 2012

Notc I - Thc Financial Reporting Entity (Coltinucd)

Related Orqapizalions

'l.l¡e Coopcrative Extens¡on Services of thc Collcge of Agriculturc, of the University of Illinois operate in
counties where extension councils have been established to disseminate information on subjects related to
agriculture and home economics and other University programs. Oversight is provided by extension councils which
derive their duties and powers ftom the Board of Trustees ofthe University oflllinois. Extension service programs
and related local funding are coordinated by an extension board numbering at least seven comprised of four
melnbers fioln the Extension Council and three from the County Board. The County extends taxos to finance
opetations of the Extension Service. The County is not financially responsible for any paÍ of the Extonsion
Seryices' operations except as it may choose to be.

The County Board Chairman appoints 50% or more of the board members of numerous entitìes. Tlìese entitics are
sepa¡ate legal entities and they have no financial accountability to the County; therefore, these entities are not included
in these financial statemcnts,

Related organizations a¡e not included in the financial statements ofthe County.

Joint Ventures

The County is a participant with 'r)r'ill County in a joint ventule to operate a juvenile justice center under an
intergovernmental agreement, with operâtirìg responsibility vested priDcipally in Will County. 'llre facility is leased
from the Will County Public Building Commission for a period of 30 years by the joint venturers. Operation of the
faciJity is under the responsibility ofthe ChiefJudge ofthe l2rh Jud¡cial Circuit (Will counry) with advice ofthe Chief
Judge of the 2l't Judicial Circuit (Kankakee County). Each party to the agreement is respònsible for their respective
share of expenses in proportion to beds leased, which amounts Io 25yo for Kankakce County. See Note I for
information on lease obligations.

Note 2 - Basis of PrcscnfâtioÙ

Government-lvidc Finattcial Statemelts The statement ofnet assets and the statement ofchanges in net assets repon
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary governmenf and its component units. Governmental
activities, which normally ar€ supported by taxes and intergovemmental revenues, are reporled separately ftom
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise the primary
govemment is reported sepârately fiom legally sepamte component units for whjch the primary government is
financially accountable. As a general rule fhe effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-
wide fi nancial statements.

The statement of activities displays the direct expenses of a given function or segment and the associated program
revenues. Di¡ect expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include l) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) operating or capital grants and conffibutions that are restricted to
meeting the operafional or capil.al requirements of a parljcular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statcmcnts 'I'he County segregates hansactions related to certain functions or âctivities in separate
funds in o¡der to aid financial management and to demonsfate legal compliance. Separate stâtements are presented for
govemmental, proprietary and fiduciary activities. These statements present each major fund âs â sepamte colulnü orì
the fund hnancial statements and all non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.
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Kânkâkr)e County, llliÌois
Notes fo Basic Financial Statcmcnts
As ofand for the year crìdcd Novcmbcr30,20l2

Notc 2 * Basis of Presentâtiou (CoÌtinucd)

Governmental funds are those funds through which mosf goveÌnmental functions typically are financed. The
Ìleasuronlelìt lbcus of govetnmcntal funds is oD tlìo soulces, uses and balanco of cufferìt financial rcsources. The
County has presented the following major govemmental funds:

General - This is the primary operating fund ofthe County and includes the Torl Fund ofthe County. It accounts
for all fiDanciai resources nof accounted for or reported in another fund.

Pension - This fund is used to account for ând repoú propely tax rcvenues resÍicted for employee pension costs.

County Highway Fund - This fund is used to account for and report operations to improve, repair and mâintain all
county highways. Its revenues consist primarily ofproperty taxes and clìarges for fiel and other services.

Proprietary funds are used to account for tlÌose county activities that are similar to those often found in the private
sector. The measurement focus is upon determination of net income, financial position, and changes in linancial
position, The Counly has presented the following rnajor proprietary fund:

9l I System Fee Fund - This fr¡nd is used to account for emergency dispâtch services to residents ofthe County,
for both county services and services plovided by other units oflocal government.

Additionally, the govemment repolts the following fiduciary fund types:

Private purpose trust funds - These funds report trust arangements under which principal and income benefit
individuals, private organiz¿tions or other govemments,

Agency firnds - These funds are custodial in nâtùre (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement or
results ofoperations, but which are due to other individuals, agencies or govemments.

Note 3 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policics

The accompanying financial statements of the County are prepared in confonnity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) for local govemment units as prescribed in statements and interpretations issued by GASB and
other recognized authoritative sources,

Measurcmenf Focus and Bâsis of Accounting: The government-wido financial statements, component unit
financial statements, and fund financial statements for proprietary and fiduciary funds are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, The economic resources measurement
focus means all assets and liabilities (whether cuffent or non-current) are included on the balance sheet, and the
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned, if measurable, and expenses are recogniz-ed as incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Govemmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting",
the County and its component units apply all GASB pronouncements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins
issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with GASB pronouncements. GovemÌnents also have
the option of follo\ring subsequent private-sector guidance for their busìness-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
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Kânkakcc County, IIliÌois
Notcs to Bâsic Fiüaìcial Stâtelllents
As ofand fot'the ycat cndcd Novcmbcr 30, 2012

Note 3 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continued)

Governlnental fund financial statemeDts are reported usirìg the current financial resources measulement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. I{evenucs are recognized as soon as they arc both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enougb thereafler to
pay liabilities of the cunent pcr¡od. For tlìis purpôse the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within sixty (60) days of the end ofthe curent fiscal pcriod. Revenues accrued at the end ofthe year include charges
for services, licenses and pe¡mits, fines and forfeitures, ilìtergovemmenlal revenues, investment earuings, propeÉy
taxes, sales taxes and sPecial assessments. All other revenue items are considered to be measùrable and available only
when cash is ¡eceived by the govemment, Expenditures generalÌy are recorded when a liability is incur¡ed, as undei
accrual accounting. I{owevor, debt seryice expenditures, as well as expenditules related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are reco¡ded only when payment is due. General capital âsset acquisilions are repoÍed as
expenditures in govemmental funds. Proceeds fiom long-term debt and acquisitiors under capital leases are reported
as other filìancing sources,

Proprietary funds separate all act¡vity into two categories: operatjng and non-operating revenues ald expenses.
Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing and delivering goods, Non-operating
tevenues attd expenses consists of all other activity not included in operating revenues and expenses, Non-operating
revenues and expenses iDclude capital and noncapital financjng activities and investing activities.

Budgctary Account¡ng aud Coutrol: The County adopts an annual budget and appropriation ordinance in
accordance with lllinois law. The budget covers the fiscal year ending November 30, and is availabie for public
inspection at least fifteen days prior to final adoption. The budget docun'ìent is prepared for all budgetary funds
using the modified accrual bâsis. Once the county budget has been adopted, no further appropriations shallbe made
during the year, except in the event of an immediate emergency at which time tlìe County Board by a two-thirds vote
may make appropriations in excess ofthose authorized in the original budget. During the year, the County Board
made additìonal appropriations of $2,340,000 for the General Fund, $749,000 for the Tort Fund, $550,000 for the
Pension Fund and S425,600 for non-major special revenue funds. The original budget and all budgetary
amendments and supplemental appropriations neccssary during the year are included in the final budget alnounts
prcsented in the budgct-lo-actual comparisons.

Poolcd Cash and Cash Equivalents and Rclâtcd Invcstmcnts: Cash resources ofa number of individual funds are
combined to form a pool ofcash and investments which is managed by the Counb/ lieâsuror, Individual fund integrity
is maintâined through the County's records. Investments are recorded at cost, which approximates market. Foï
purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider all highly liquid investments (including
restricted assets) with a maturity ofthree months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

All component units delìne cash and cash equivalents as cash on hand and deposits with original maturities of three
months or less.

Rcccivâbles: Propeúy taxes receivable are ¡ecorded net ofan allowance for uncollectible amounts based on historical
experience ofapproximately 0.7 percent ofextensions. Other accounts recaivable are reported net ofany allowance for
uncollectibles,

lnventories: Inventot ies consist of tax sfamps, postage, fuel, and transportation and other supplies recorded at cost,
using the first in, first out method.

Capitål Asscts: Capital assets, which include prope¡1y, plaDt, equipneDt, and inûastruclure assets, are repoíed in the
applicabìe governmsntal or businoss-type activities columns in the govommont-wide f,urancial statemerts and iD the
fund financial statements for proprietary funds, Capital âssets are defined by the County as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than its capitalization threshold and an estimated useful life in excess ofone year. Categories
ofcapital assets aud associâtod capitalization thresholds are as follows: lând - $100,000; buildings and improvements -
$25,000 - $100,000; jnlïashucture assets (county roads and bridges) - $100,000; equipmenr - $5,000, Assets a¡e
recordod at historical cost or estimaled historical cost if historical cost is not available. Donâted capital assets âre
recorded at estimatcd fair market value at the date ofdonation. 
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KaÌrkâkce County, Illinois
Notcs to I]âsic Financial Stâtcnlents
As of and for the ycar cnded Novcrnbcr 30, 2012

Note 3 - Summâry of Signilicaut Accounting Policies (Coutinued)

Cost ofnormal maintenance and repairs thâ1 do not add to the value ofthe asset or materially extend the asset's ljfe are
nol. capitalized.

The County depreciates assets on a straight line basis using the following estimated uscful lives:
Asset

Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Buildings, slructures and improvements
Improvements other than buildings

Estimated Useful Life
5 to 10 years

30 to 50 vears

30 to 50 years

Compcnsâted Absences: Only vested or accumulated vacation/sick leave that is due is reported as an expenditule and
a fund liability ofthe govcmmenfal fund that will pay it. In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary
fund types, vested or accumulated vacation/sick leave is recorded as an expense and )iability as the benefits accrue to
employees No liability is recorded for nonvesting, accumulating rights to roccive vacatior/sick leave benefits;
however, a liability is recognized for that portion ofaccumulating vacation/sick lcave benefits that is estimated will be
taken as "terminal leave" prior to retfement, County policy states than an employee must use each year's vâcation
days during the year. Sick and extended illness days may be accumulated to a total of 120 days per employee with no
amount payable upon sepalation from service. Under collective bargaining agreements covering ceftaìn employees in
the deparlments of County Sheriff, Corrections, Health, County Recorder, and the Emergency Telephone System
Board, a percenfage ofaccumulated sick days may be paid or credited for retirement purposes at levels ranging from 80
ro 120 days,

Long Term Obligations: In the govemment-wide financiâl statements and proprietary funds in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are repoÍed as liabilities in the applicable goveÌnlnental
activities, business-type activities or propÌietary fund type financial statements. Bond premiums and discounts, as
well as issuance costs, âre defened and amortized over the life ofthe bonds. Bonds payable are reported net ofthe
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuancc costs are reported as defered charges and amortized over the
term ofthe related debt. In the fund financial statements, govemmental fund types recognize bond premiurns and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the cunent period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums teceived on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources whjle
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other fìnancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld fi.om the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt seÌvice expenditures.

Fund Equity: Proprietary fund oquity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements. Governmental
fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is fuñher classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed,
assigned, or unassigned, ' Nonspendable fund balance cannot be spent because of its form, . Restricted fund
balance has limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, or contributors or by enabling legislation or cônstitùtional
provisions, ' Committed fund balance is a limitation imposed by formal action of the County. Comrnitments may
be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions approved by the County Board. . Assigned fund
balance refers to amounts that are consfrained by the County's intent to be used for a specific purpose, but are
neither restricted nor committed. Intent may be expÌessed by the County Board. Assigned amounts also include
temaining positive fund balances for all governmental funds except the General Fund. . Unassigned fund balance in
the General Fund is the net resources in excess of what can be properly classified in one of the above th¡ee
categories, Negative unassigned fund balance in other governmental funds rapresents excess expenditures incur¡ed
over the amounts restricted or commilted to those purposes.

When both restricted and unresh icted fund balances ale available for use, it is the County's policy to use restricted
fund balance first, then unrestricted fund balance. Furthermore, committed fund balances are reduced first, folÌowed
by unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the uuestricted
fund balauce classifications can be used.

l5



Kanka kcc County, Illinois
Notcs to Basic Fitìaìcial Statcmcnts
4s qland fol thc yeal euded Novcnrbcr 30,2012

Note 3 - Summary ofSign¡ficant Accounting Policics (Continucd)

Rcstrictcd Net Asscts: For governrnent-wide financial statements, net assets are repofted as restrictod when
constraints pJaced on net assets are either: (1) extemally imposed by creditols (such as debt covenants), grantors,
contributors, or Iaws or regulations ofother governments or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

Whcn both restricted and unrestticted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted as they are needed.

Propcrty Tâxes: The County is responsible for the assessment and collection ofproperty taxes for all jurisdìctions
including the schools altd speciai districts within the County. The County ìevies property taxes annually on or
before the last Tucsday in December based on the assessed valuation determiDod in April ofthe same year. Property
tax payments are due in two equal installments, usually in June and Septelnber, with the first installment being due
no earlier than 30 days ÍÌom date of mailing. Tax bills are generally mailed in May, Distributions to the County and
other districts are tnade shortly thereafler. Property taxes become a lien on the property on January L Taxes
reccivable at November 30 that are intended to finance the subsequent fiscal year âre appropriately defered. The
201 I tax lely collected in 2012 was recorded as revenues during this fiscal year.

Intcrfund Transactions: During the normal course of operations th€ Coutìty has numerous Íansactions between
funds. Transfers represent movement of resouÌces fiom a fr.lnd receiving revenue to a fund through which those
resources will be expended and are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in govemmental funds and as transfers in
proprietary funds. Interfund fansâctions that would be feated as revenues and expenditures/expenses ifthey involved
orgânizations extemal to the County are heated sjmilarly when involving other funds ofthe County.

Activity between funds thât is referred to as "due to/ftom other funds" represents fansactions when one fund incurs
expenditures/expenses for the benefit of another fund and expects repayment from it. Any residual balances
outstanding between the govemmental aotivities and business-type activities are reported in the govemment-wide
financial stafements as "ìntemal balances".

Estimates: The preparation of fìnancial statemonts in conformity with generally âccept€d accounting principles
requircs the County to make estìmates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ ûom those estimatos.

Notc 4 - Deposits and Invcstmcnts

The County has adopted a vvritten investment policy which conforms to state statutes for investment of public funds.
At year end, the County's investments were comprised ofthe following:

CeÍificates ofDeposit
lllinois Funds Money Market

Investments reported on:
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Fiduciary Net .^ssets:

Private Purpose Trust
Agency

% ofPortfoliô
46%
s4%

$ 8,937,108

I ,699,026
309.995

$t0,t{il29

$ 5,004,695
s.94t.434

s!9,944L?2
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KâÌkâ¡(ce CouIty, IIIirois
Notes to Basic Financial Statcl¡rcnts
,As of and for thc yc¡r cndcd Novcmber 30. 2012

Notc 4 - Deposits and Invcstmcrts (Confinucd)

CredÌl Risk. 'lhe County's cash and investments are subject to credit risk (the risk that an issuer or counterpaÍy to
an investment will not fulfill its obligation). State law requires public funds to be invested within the gui<ìelines set
fo¡1h in the Public Funds lnveshnent Act (30 ILCS/235). The CounÐ/'s investment policy conforms to these state
statutes and does not fuÍher limit its investment choices. As of November 30, 2012, all the County's invest¡nents
exposed to credit risk rvere rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's.

Thc Illinois Funds Money Market Fund is an investrnent pool managed by the State of Illinois, Office of the
Treasurer, which allows governments within tlìe State to pool their fìnds for investlnent puÌ?oses, llliuois Funds is
not registered with the SEC as an investment company, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 ofthe
Investlnent Company Act of 1940. Investments in Illinois Funds a¡e valued at llljnois Funds' share price, which is
the price for which the investment could be sold. Audited financial slatements for the Illjnois Funds are available
ftorn the lllinois Auditor General.

Custodial Credìt Risk - Deposits. \ryith respect to deposits, custodial credit risk refers to the risk that, in the event of
a bank failure, the County's deposits may not be Íetumed to it. The County's investment policy limits the exposure
to deposit custodial credit risk by requiring all deposits in excess ofFDlC insurable limits to be secured by cotlateral
or additional insurance in the event of default or failure of the financial institution holding the funds. As of
November 30,2012, àll deposits were either insu¡ed or collateralized with collateral held by the County's agent in
the County's name.

Custodiel Credit Risk- Investnents. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the ovent of
the failure of the counterpâúy, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The County's investment policy limits the exposure to
investment custodial credit risk by requiring all investments to be secured by private insurânce or collateral.

The County's primary investment, Illinois Funds Money Market Fund, is collateralized 105%o over FDIC with U.S.
Treasury obligations and marked to market on a daily basis to maintain sufficiency.

As ofNovember 30,2012, the County had S1,655,681 invested in overnight repurchase agreements. The underlying
security is he)d by the investment's counterparty, not in the name ofthe County,

Concenlrqtion o/ Credit Risk. The County's investment policy states investments shall be diversified to avoid
incurring unreasonable risks regarding specific security types and/or individual financial institutions.

Interesl Rate Rö,t. The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investmenl matur¡tics as a
means of managing its exposure to fair vâlue losses arising from increasing interest rates, However, the County's
policy stâtes investments shall provide sufficient liquidity to meet alÌ operating requirements that may be reasonably
anticipated.

The Kankakee County Public Building Commission held County funds in the amount of $ I,310,523 as of October
31,2012. Non-FDIC insu¡ed balances were collateralized with pledged securities held by the bank's agent, not in
the Commission's name.

Under an ordinance governing the borrowing and pâyment of general obligation bonds, alternate revenue source, cenain
cash balances in the 9l I System Fee Fund, a business-typo activity, are restricted for payment of interest and principal.

Notc 5 - CDAP Loans lìcccivablc

The CDAP Loan Program is designed to assist Kankakee Coun{ in atfacting or expanding local industry. The
prog aln provides low ilìterest loans to projects that create or retainjobs primarily for low to moderate-income workers,
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As ofand fol thc ycâr cndcd Novcmbcr 30,2012

Notc 5 - CDAP Loaùs Rcceivablc (Continucd)

In accordance \ryith the lllinois Deparhnent of Cornmerca and Econorrlic Opportunity, Communìty Developrnent
,4ssistance Program, the County has the following Community Developrnent loans outstanding.

Exceptional I-Iealth Paft ners
Unipar
Accion .

Main Street Momcnce
Pembloke Township

Total
Less allowance fo¡
uncollectible amounts:
CDAP loans, net

Balances
November 30. 2011

$ 76,lll
665,4E4

50,000
50,000
45.645

887,240

(66s.484)

822,u5Á

Additions
$

25,000

25,000

s2L0!Q

Balances
November 30,

20ll Additions

920J14 $ -
526,093 578,433

t,340,847 105,195
1.770.000
4.557 .254 683.0-8

BaÌances
Retirements November30.20l2
$(7,s31) $ 68,s80

- 66s,484
- 75,000
- s0,000

45.645
(7,s31) 904;t09

(6ó5.484)

$?J2Æ

Thc County has secu¡ity agreements of perfected second position and personal guarantees or assignmcnts of lifè
insurance policies to be used as collateral on all CDAP loans. The allowance for loan losses reflects amoulìts
estimated to be unrecove¡able.

Notc6-CâpitalAsscts

Capital asset activity for the year ended November 30,2012 was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets no! being depreciated:
Land $
Constructiôn in progress
Intangible assets
Building - idle

Total

Capital assets being depreciated:
'l'ransportation network
Buildings and implovements
Buildings and improvements under

Retirements Balances
and November 30,

Reclâssifications 2012

$ s 920,314
- 1 ,t04,526
- t,446,042

1.770.000

30,642962
49,806,306

l6l,?98
5 t4,037

t5,037 ,032 I,096,122
I I,557,635 1,368,482

- 30,804,760
- 50,320,343

- 5,180,000
279,462 t0,115,467
293.6'15 6.222.t06
5',t3.t37 102.642.676

- 16,133,154
- t2,926,Ú't

- 2,087,253
276,86t 8,191,239
293.941 4.096.406
570.802 43.434.t69

$_J*3:5_ $64:t49J!9

capital lease agreements 5,180,000
Equipment t0,236,263 158,666
Vehicles 5,534.4t3 981.368

Total capital âssets being depr€ciated 101.399.944 1.815.869

Less accumulated depreciation for:
TranspoÍation network
Iluildings and itnprovements
Buildings and improvements under

capital lease agreements 1,937,045 150,208
Equipment 7,'131,93i 736,163
Vehicles 3.941,941 448,406

Total accurnulated depreciation 40.205.590 3.799.381
covermnental activity capital assets, net $éå15ÀlQ8 $(l?9qü4)
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Äs of and for fhe ycâr cndcd Novcnrbcr 30, 2012

Notc 6 - Capital Asscts (Colltinued)

Busincss-typc âctivitics:
Capital asscls not being depreciared:

Land
Const¡uction in pÌogress

Total
Capital assets being depreciated:

Equipment
Leasehold itnprovements

Equipment under capital lease agreements
Total

Balances
November 30,

20ll Additio¡rs

s 61,013 S -
382.1't3

61.013 382.173

6,342,7 t',] 25,005
t9'7,27',1

81.953
6.62t.947 25.005

Retiroments llalances
and November 30,

Reclassificatio¡rs 2012

$ - $ ó1,013
382.t73
443.t86

28,618 6,339,104
- t97,27'7

81.953
26.618 6.618.334

28,618 4,s83,750

28.618 4.64t A5't
$____j $l-42S_m

Less: Accumulated depreciation 4,301,944 310,424
Accumulated arnortization, capital leases 51.888 5.819

Total accumulated depreciation 4,353.832 316.243
Business-type activities capital assets, net S2]2ZJ2E $__9!,ru

Depreciatìon for the year ended November 30, 2012, was charged as follows to the following functions
Governmental activities:

General govemmental
CouÍ services
Public safety
Health and sanitation
Transponation
Veterans administration
Total governmentâl âctivities

Business-type âctivities:
9l I Emergency services
Animal control

'I'ôtal business-typc activ¡lics

Notc 7 - Long-Term Debt

Long-lerm debt consisls oflhe follorving:

GoYcrnmental ActiYitics
Noles Pavable and Debt Ceni{¡cates:

$ 108,024
2s9,401

2,002,729
7 5,5'72

t,352,040
1.615

$3J99-3&t

$ 3t0,424
5.8 l9

$_Jé243

lnstallment note in the amount of $175,000 dated October 1, 2009, for the purchase of real estate, providing for four
annual interest paymelìts at a rate of 40¿ and one principal payment on October l, 2014.

Dobt Certificates. Series 2004 in the original amount of$6,000,000 payable annually, December I in amounts ranging
from $215,000 to $410,000 and with interest payable semiannually on June I and December I at rates ranging ÍÌom
1.75o/o lo 4.6yo pet annum, with an effective net interest ra[e of4.loZ. The purpose ofthe debt certificatcs was to fund
th€ construction ofpublic safety faculties.

Portions ofthe Series 2004 Debt Ceúificates were refunded with the Series 2012 bonds. Payments for the refrlnded
bonds are made from cscrow deposits held by a thiÌd pany, and therefore are not reported as debt by the County.

Debt Certificates. Series 20058 in the original amount of $8,265,000 payable alnually, December I in amounts
ranging lrom $135,000 to $645,000 and with interest payable semiannually on June I and Dccember I at rates ranging
from 2,7 syo to 5,0o/o per annum, with ân effective net intercst rate of4.57%. Thc purposc ofthe debt cartificates was to
fund the consfrucfion ofpublic safety facilities, 
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Notc 7 - Long-Tcrnr Debt (Contillucd)

Bonds:

Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Altemate Revenue Source). Series 2009, (Build America Bonds - Direct Payment)
dated September 15, 2009, in the originâl issue amount of $3,500,000, provide for serial retbeÌnent of piincipal
beginning January 15, 201 I through 2022 with l'elm Bonds due January 15,2024,2026,2028 and 2030i and interest
payable January l5 and July 15 ofeach year beginning January 15, 2010 at rates of 1.85% to ó.2%, secured by court
fee revenues ofthe Circuit Clerk Automation and Document Stomge Funds, and a property tax ler.y, ifnecessary. The
purpose ofthis bond issue was to fund the integrated justice information sysfern.

Bond Series 2009 is a Build America Bond, on which 35% ofthe interest paid will be refundable to tlìe County. This
amounts to $817,659 over the life ofthe bonds and will be recorded as ¡evenues at the time ofreceipt. During fiscal
year 2012,561,109 ofinterest was reñ¡nded to the County.

General Oblieation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source). Se¡ies 20ll dated June 15, 2011, in the original
issue amount of$6,ó00,000 provide for serial retirement ofprincipal beginning Dccember l, 2012 through 2024, and
interest payable December I and June I ofeach year beginning December l, 201 I at rates of 2.0% to 4.2%, secured by
inmate housing fees ofthe Gene¡al Fund, and a property tax levy, ifnecessary. The purpose of this bond issue was to
provide monies to advance refund Series 20054 Debt Certificates.

General Oblisation Refundine Bonds (Altemate Revenue Source). Series 2012 dated April 24,2012, it the original
issue amount of $3,690,000 provide for serial retirement of principal payable on December I each year for 2012
thloùgh 2024, and interest payable December I and June I each year, beginning Decembel l, 2012 at rates of 2.0% to
3.25%, secured by inmate housing fees of the General Fund, and a properfy tax le\y, if necessary. The puryose of this
bond issue was to provide monies to advance refund $3,395,000 ofseries 2004 Debt CeÍificates.

Business-f!îe Activities
$3,300,000 General Obligation Altenrate Revenue Source Bonds due in annual installments beginDing January l, 2003
in amounts ranging frorn $220,000 to $235,000 through 2017, plus interest at rates ranging from 3.55% to 5%, secured
by surcharges on telecommunications revenues .

Changes in long-term debt are as follows:
Bâlances

November 30,
20ll Additions Reductions

Balances
November 30,

2012
Governmental activities :

Bonds - Gcneral Obligation
Adjustments for deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums
On refunding

Total bonds - general obligation
Debt Certificates
Adjuslments for dcfcrred amounls:

For issuance premiums
Total debt certificates

Note payable
Capital leases (Note 8)
Compensated absences

Total

$10,02s,000

83,629

10.108.629
10,605,000

2t6.627
10.82t.627

175,000
3,699,s62

564.815
s 25,3ó9,633

135,4?4
(271.2't s)

13.089.199
6,s85,000

203.993
6.788.993

t75,000
3,523,849

$24,18263-7

$ 1,165,000
16,804
37.703

$a2reéE
40

$3,690,000 $ 490,000 $ t 3,225,000

Business-type activities:
Bonds - Altemate Revenue Source $ 1,395,000
Capitâl leases (Note 8) 24,359
Cornpensâted absences 23.618

Total $JAA291,1

59,569 7,724
(277.287) rc.012)
3.472.282 49t.7t2

- 4,020,000

12.634
4.032.634

673,604 E49,317
53.253 7 ^4',72

s4J99-136 $5J3It35

$ $ 230,000
- 7,555

14.085

$ 14.0&5 $ 23rJ5é



Kaukahee County, Illinois
Notcs lo Basic FinaIciâl Statcnents
As of ând for thc vca r cnded Novcmber 30, 2012

Nntc 7 - Long-Telnì Dcbf (Confirrucd)

As ofNovember 30, 2012, the County was obligated to make payments ofprincipal and interest as followsl

For fiscal years
ending Novenber 30,

2013
2014
20t5
20t6
20t7

20t8-2022
2023-2027
2028-2030

Governmental Activities
Principal Intorest

$ r,893,433 $1,031,219
2,059,242 968,429
1,804,838 820,979
I,822,912 754,830
1,556,582 682,665
8,74t,054 2,444,58t
4,935,788 647,718
695.000 65.340

$23t08"&19 $L4tsJól

Total
s 2,924,652

3,027,67 |
2,625,817
2,5'77,742
2,239,247

I1,185,635
5,583,506

7 60.340
$10,924,610

Principal
$ 238,106

238,698
235,000
235,000
235.000

Interest Total
s s2,452 $ 290,558

40,935 279,633
29,08t 264,081
17,s66 252,566
5,875 240,875

$Ll&l-&04 $l4åq09 $IQ7JJ]

The total interest incuned for shoft-term and long-term debt for the year ended November 30, 2012 was $1,073,745
all ofwhich was charged to expense.

For govemmental activìties, the compensated absences are liquidated by the fund in which the related salaries are
charged.

Advance Refundinq

The Series 2012 bonds totaled $3,690,000 and were used to refund $3,395,000 ofthe Series 2004 debt certificates, The
proceeds of these bonds were placed in escrow held by a third party to generate resources for all future debt service
payments of the refunded Series 2004 debt certificates. As a result, the refunded debt cefificates are considered
defeâsed and the liability has been removed ÍÌom the County's statement ofnet assets.

The refunding was undertaken to reduce future debt seruice payments. The reacquisilion price exceeded the net
carrying amount ofthe old debt by $277 ,287 . This amount is being netted against the new debt and amoftized over the
new debt's life, which is the same as the refunded debt. The transaction also resulted in an economic gain of$138,194
and a reduction of$138,007 in future debt service payments.

The remaining balance ofthe defeased Series 20054 debt certificates and Series 2004 debt ceúificates as ofNovember
30,2012 was $6,535,000 and $3,395,000, respectively.

Note 8 - Lcâscs

The County has entered into various leasing anangements for facilities and equipment that contribute to its ability to
provide needed govemmental services. Under generally accepted accounting principles, leases that ftansfer ownership
at their conclusion or are otherwise tantamount to a transfer of property rights over the estimated service life of the
underlying leasehold are accorded fteaÍnent similar to asset purchases. Those that do not are considered operating
leases, l'ollowing are significant leasing arangements currently in eflect.

Opcrâting Lcascs
In April 2002, the Kankakee County Emergency Telephone System Board entered into a sublease agreement with the
Kankakee Coun{ Public Ilealth DopaÍment for 5,285 square feet of space which the Heâlth Department leases
indirectly from the Kanlokee County Public Building Commission. The lease term is for 25 years at an initial annual
rent of$18,762 subject to review evety five years with a rnaximum increase at that time of l5%,



Kankakcc County, Illinois
Notes to llasic Fiuancial Sfatc¡nc¡rts

and for thc vcar cndcd Nr¡velnbcr

Note 8 - Lcâses (Cont¡nued)

Future minimum rertal commitments for this lease as of November 30, 2012 are as follows:

2013
20t4
2015
2016
20\'t

20t8 -2022
2023 - 2027

2028

ETSB Fund
s t8,762

18,762
18,762
t8,762
18,7 62

93,810
93,810

9.3 8l
$29!éU

Rent expenditures/expenses for opemting leases for year ended Novomber 30, 2012 - $_ljJ62

Capitâl Leases - Juvcnilc Justicc Ccnter Facilitics
ln October 1996 the County, together with Will County, Illinois, entercd into a 30 year noncancellable lease agreement
ending October 15, 2026 with the Will County Public Building Commission for a 100 bed county shelter care and
detention home for minors. Kankakee County leases 25 beds, and Will County leases 75. This facility is financed by
revenue bonds issued by the'üill County Public Building Commission.

Annual rental payments for Kankakee County, including operation and maintenance costs, range ÍÌom $577,854 in
2012 to 9666,199 inyear20l6. For years 2017 through 2026, ¡ental payments wil¡ be detemined through negotiation.
The Coünty ìs not liable for any lease payments attributable to that poÉion ofthe facility leased by Will County.

The lease agreemcnt further provides that upon expiration of the lease term, either Kankakee or Will County may
choose not to renew. ln that event, the withdrawing party's interest will be purchased based on that party's
proportionate share of fr.rnds confibuted (including lease payments) applied to a value to be determined under
provisions in the agreement. Ifneither party chooses to rene\r, each county will bear its proportionate share ofcosts to
restore the propeÍy through demolition. The County has provided for its lease obligation through a tax lery on all
taxable propefty in the County, and finances, from its General Fund, its share of the program operating expenses ofthe
facility.

Capital Lcascs - Equipment
The County leases vehicles under capital lease affangements \ryjth lease terms ofperiods offive ycars, generally. The
leases are simiÌarly shxctured and generally provide for Ìease payments on a quarlerly or semi-annual basis,

Capital Lcâscs - Hcalth Department Facilitics
In January 2002, the County entered into a lease agreement with the Kankakee County Public Building Commissìon
and an intergovemmental agreement with the Kankakee County Public Health Department for lease of facilities to be
occupied by the Health Department, ln Januâry 2007, the lease was arnended due to the refunding of the underlying
bonds issued by the Kankakee County Public Building Commission. The lease is for a period of20 years beginning
November 1,2007 and provides for annual rents ranging Íïom $175,335 to $185,570 with an effective interest rate of
4.426%.

The Health D€pafiment's share of the lease payments due the Kankakee County Public Building Commission,
amounting to 88% ofthe total requirements ofthe lease, is paid to the County ofKankakee which then remits 100% of
the payment required to the Building Commission, The financial statements rcflect the lease activ¡ty in the l-lealth
Fund and General Fund in proportion to their respective obligations for lease payments. The lease is considered a
general obligation alternate bond and is secured by various revenues ofthe County Health DepartrÌìent. Upon payment
of all lease tentals, tlìe Public Building Comrnissiou shall transfer fee simple title to the Ilealth Depa ment provided
that the I{ealth Department is authorized by law to take such title. If ffansfer is not then permitxed, title shall be
transferred to Kankakce Counry,
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Note 8 - Leases (Continued)

SubsequeDt to execution offhis lease, the Kankakee County Emergency Telephone System Board was added as a pany
to the ìntergovenunerltal agrccnrent to lease 5,285 square feet of spâce subject to 1lìe alorementioned lease. The
intergovemmental agreement provides for, among other things, the Kankakee County Emergency Telepllone System
Board to pay annual rent in thc amount of $18,762 (see above operating lease infoÌmation) to the Kankakee Côunry
Public Health Deparlment.

Future minimum lease payments under these capital leases are as follows;
Govemlnental

Will Counly Kankakee County
Public Building Public Building

Commission Commission Other Total

s277,664 $ l,071,087 $9,333
178,190 1,009,983 9,333
36,259 880.28 t

- 8s0,934
- 185,250
- 914,310

707.'779

492,1t3 5,619,624 18,666

- I )l'> al'7

492,113 4,371,077 t8,666
t4.250 853.228 I.862

201 lB Series

$ -0-
1,000,000

(1.000.000)
$ ...._.---8,

Business
Activities

Animal
Control
Vehicle

For fìscal years ended November 30,
2013
2014
20t5
20t6
201'l
20t8-2022
2023-2026
Total minimum lease payments

Less: Amountrepresenting estimated
executory costs (maintenance
and insurance), included in totâl
minimum lease payments

Net minimum lease payments
Less: Amount representing interest
Present value ofnet minimum

lease payments

Note 9 - Short-Tcrm Dcbt

Balance December 1, 201 I

lncreases
Decreases
Balance Novetnber 30, 2012

s 6l1,608
648,778
659,997

2,586,582

1 .242.547
t,344,035

166.5 5ó

ilJ1LA19

$ 181,81 5

183,015
184,02s
t84,73s
185,250
9t4,3t0
't07.779

2,540,929

,"540,rD
672.422

$1.8fjt!7 s41lÅÁi $3123'&49 s16&04

Shon-term debt provides fÌnancing for governmental activities. In Decembe¡ 201l, the County issued $3,300,000
20llA Corpolate Purpose Tax Anticipation Wanants and $1,000,000 20llB Taxable Pension Purpose Tax
Anticipation Warrants due September 30, 2012 with interest rates of 1.03 /o anð,l.54Yo, respectively. This debt was
issued for interim financing of General Fund and Pension Fund operâtions. On September 26, 2012, the County
repaid the notes plus $38,552 in interest. f'he following is a summary of changes in short-term debt for the year
ended November 30, 201 2:

20114 Series
$ -0-

3,300,000
(3.300.000)

$__-,-_-0_
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Notc l0 - Relircmcnt Funds

Reeular and Elected County Official Personnel

Plan Description. The County's defined benefit pension plan for Regular and Elected County Official ernployees
provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. The County's plan is affitiated with the lllinois Municipal Retiremenf Fund (IMRF), an agent
multiple-employer plan. Benefìf provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General
Assembly of the State of Illinois, IMRI issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary infonnation, That report may be obtained on-line at www.irnrf,ors.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, Regular and Elected County Official plan members are required to contribute
4,50 and 7.50 percent, respectively, of their annual covered sâlâry. The statute requires the Counfy to conbibute the
amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees.
The County contribution rate for calendar year 2012 was I 1.51 and 81.91 percent, respectively, of annual covered
payroll. The County annual required confibution rate for calendar year 2012 was 11,85 and 104.70 percent,
respectively. The County also confibutes for disability benefìts, death benefits and supplemcntâl retirement
benefits, all ofwhich are pooled at the IMR¡ level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the
IMRF Board ofTrustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Co.t/. For calendar year ending December 3l,2012, fhe County's actual contributions for pension
costs for Regular and Elected County Offlcials werc 92,227,159 ând S148,405, respectively. The County's an¡ual
required contributions (ARC) for calendar year 20)2 were 52,292,948 and $ I89,697, respectively. The County's
annual pension cost (APC) for calendar year 2012 was 52,302,691 and $ 192,771, respectively.

Fiscal
Year Ending

t2/3t lt2
t2l3! t r
t2l3vt0

Fiscal
Year Endinq

t2l3t /t2
t2/3t /t I
t2l3t/t0

Annual Pension
Cost (APC)

s2,302,691
2,067,211
2,102,540

Percentage of Net Pension
APC Contribu¡ed Obligation

97% $ 75,532
92% 167,413
86% 288,t26

Annual Pension
Cost (APC)
$192,771

I80,8t8
256,998

Percentage of
APC Cont¡ibuted

77%
72%
64%

Net Pension
Obligation
s44,366

51,738
91,995

The required contribution for 20I 2 was determined as part of the December 3 I , 2010, actuarìal valuation using the
entry age normal actuatial cost method. The âctuarial assumptions at Decembor 31, 2010, included (a) 7,5 percent
investment rate of Ìeturn (net of administrafive and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of
4.00%o a year, athibutable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging frorn 0.4o/o to lQ.ÙYo per year
depending on age and seÌvice, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post. retirement benefit increases of 3%o

annually. The actuarial value of the County Regulâr and Elected Officiâl plan âssets was determined using
techniques that spread the effects of shoÌ1-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period,
with a 20yo corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The Coünty Regular and Electcd Coulty
Official plans' unfunded actuarial accrued liability at th€ December 31, 2010 is being amortized as a level
percentage ofprojected payloll on an open 30 yeal basis.
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Note 10 -Rctircmcut Funds (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of Decernber 31,2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
Regllar and Elccted Official plaus wele 67.89 ald 0.00 percent fuuded, respectivcly. The actualial accr,ued liability
for benefits was $47,521,886 and $2,188,988, respectively, and the actuarial value of assets was $32,262,0jj and
$(2,139,053), respectively, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liabiliry (UAAL) of S15,259,809 and
$4,328,041, r'espectively. The covered payroll for calendar year 2012 (annual payroll of actìve employees covered
by the plans) was 519,349,775 and $ 181,18I , respectively, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was ?9
percent and 2,389 percent, respectively.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents
tnultiyear trend infor¡nation about whether the actuärial value of plan assets is increâsing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Sherifls Law Enforcement Personnel

Plan Description. The County's defined beneht pension plan for Sherifls Law Enforcement Personnel employees
provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. The County plan is affiliated wjth the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-
employer plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assernbly of
the State oflllinois. IMRF' issues a publicly avaiìable financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That repofi may be obtained online at www.imrlorg.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the County Sherifls Law Enforcement Personnel plan members are required to
contribute 7.50 percent of their annual covered salâry. 'I'he statute requires employers to contlibute the amount
necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The
County contribution rate for calendar year 2012 used by the County was 24.52 percent of annual covered payroll,
The County's annual required contribution rate for the calendar year 2012 was 25.48 percent. The County also
contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the
IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustoes, while the
supplemental retirement benofìts rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cosl. For calendar year ending December 3 I , 2012, the County's actual contributions for pension cost
for the Sherifls Law Enfo¡cement Pe¡sonnel were $976,550, Its annual required contribution (ARC) for calendar year
2012 was $1,014,784. lts annualpension cost (APC) for calendar year 2012 was $1,019,480.

Th¡ee-Year Trend lnformation for the Sherifls Law Enforcement Pe¡sonnel Plan

Fiscal
Year Endine

12131/t2
t2/31ltt
t2l3|10

Annual Pension
Cost IAPC)

$ 1,019,480
959,862
944,7 0'7

Percentage of
APC Contributed

96%
88%
89%

Net Pension
Obligation
$ 42,930
115,818

103,698

The required contribrìtion fo¡ 2012 was dete¡mined as part of the December 31,2010, actuarial valuation using the
entry age actuarial cost method. The actuârial assumptions at December 31,2010, included (a) 7.5 percent
investment rate of return (net of administrative and direct ilìvestment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of
4.00%o a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4%o fo 10.0%o per year
depending on age and seruice, âttibutable to seniority/merit, and (d) post-retirement benefit increases of 3%
ânnually. The actuarial value ofthe County Sheriffs Law Enforcement Personnel plan assets was determined using
teclìlìiques thal spread the effects of shoft-tenn volatility in the rnarket value of investments over a five-year period
wilh a 20yo colridor between the actuariaÌ arìd market value of assets. Thc County Sheriffs Law Enfol cement
Pe¡sonnel plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31,2010 is being amortized as a level percentage
ofprojected payroll on an open 30 year basis.
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Notc l0 -Retircment l'r¡Dds (ContirÌcd)

þ-unded Status qnd Funding Progress. As ofDecember 31, 2012, thc most recent actuarial valuation date, tlìe Slìcrifls
La\.v Ellforcemellt Petsornel plan was 32.30 percent funded. The actuarìal accrued liability for benefits was
S17,841,897 and the actuarial value of assets was S5,762,265, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) of $12,079,632. The covered pâyroll for calendar year 2012 (ãnnual payroll ofactive ernployees covered by
the plan) was $3,982,668 and the ratio ofthe IJAAL to the covered payroll was 303 percent.

The schedule offunding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to financial statemenrs, presents multiyear tïend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Net Pension Obiieation
Elected

Regular Plan OflÌcials Plan SLEP Plan l'olal
Annual requûed contribution (ARC) 52,292,948 $189,697 $1,014,?84 53,497,42g
Interest on net pension obligation 34,165 10,780 16,464 61,409
Adjushnent to ARC (24.422) (7.106) (l 1.768) 143.896)
Ânnual pension cosf 2,302,691 t92,'t7 t j,019,480 3,514,942
Actual conhibutions 8227,JjÐ û48.405) t976.550) (3j52J.14)
Change in net pension obligation 75,532 44,366 42,930 162,828
Net pension obligation November 30, 201 I 455.539 143.733 219.516 BtS.?88
Net pension obligation November 30, 2012 $_5ll_07l $ ßE-099 S_22A46 $_9S1,é&

Notc 1l - Defcrrcd Compensatior Plân

The County offers its employees a defened compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, available to all County employees, permits them to defer a portion ôftheir salary until future
years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, dcath, or emergency.

Notc l2 - Intcrfund Accounts and Trânsfcrs

Interfund balances are as follows:

Governmental Funds:
General Fund
Tort Fund (Reported in General Fund)
Total General Fund
Pension
Other Govemmental Funds

Subtofal
Elimination in General/Tort F'unds

Total Goverrunental Funds

Receivable

$ 46,061
1.050.000
1,096,0ól
1,42s,000
1.212.390
3,733,451
(1.050.000)
$zJ$ll5.l

Payable

$3,687,390

3,68'7,390

a6-051
3,733,451
û.050.000)

$¿683,4s1

The General Fund bonowed $3,687,390 ûom other govemmental funds in the fonn of interfund loans to cover
operating expenses. The remaining balances resulted from normal interfund activity whcn one fr¡nd incurs
expenditures/expenses for the benefit ofanothe¡ fund and expects repayment.
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Nofe l2 - Interfund Accounts and I'ransfcrs (Continucd)

Transfers during tlìe year ended November 30, 20 t2 are surnmarized as follows:

General Fund
Other Nonrnajor Funds:

Arrestee Medical
Forfeited Funds - Sheriff
Court Docutnent Storage
Court Automation
Bond Fund Series 2009
Bond Fund Series 201 I
Bond Fund Series 2012

Generd Fund (excluding Tort)

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Treasurer's Interest

Coroner Fee

Ilealth Fund

In
$ 13,516

3t4,5g;
6s9,166

_4_]-9,5-L!
$u&J8{

Out
$ r,078,676

9,000
4,516

t57,298

$I40óJ88

Budget Amount in Excess
Amount of Appropriations

$32,780,46't $50s,849

Tlìe Arestee Medical Fund bansferred $9,000 to the General Fund to offset inmate medical expenses paid oùt of the
General Fund. The Forfeited Funds - Sheriff !-und bansfened accumulated funds in the amòunt ofS4,516 to the
General Futrd. The Cou¡1 Document Storage and Court Automation Funds hansferred debt service principal and
interest into the Bond Fund Series 2009 in accordance with debt covenants. The General Fund h.ansfeneã debise¡vice
principal and interest into the Bond Fund Sories 201I and Series 2012 in accordance with debt covenants.

Notc l3 - Additional Fund Disclosures

The following funds had expenditures in excess of appropriations:

Actual
Amount

$33,286,316

40,713 30,100

19,265

t0,673

39,265 20,000

3,068,808 3,044.675 24.133

Note 14 - Insurance and Rclatcd Risks

The County is exposed to various risks in the course of its daily operations. These include liability under workers'
compensation laws, employee healtlt insurance and general liability under tort laws. Except for workers' compensation
insutance, desc¡ibed in the following paragraph, fhe County puchases commercial insu¡ance for these rìsks. There
have been no significant reductions in coverage ftom the prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverage in the
past thÌee years.

The County has entered into an agreement ï/ith the Illinois Public Risk Fund. The pooling agreement pemits public
agencies within the meaning of the Intergovemmental CoopeÌation Act of the State of Illinois to provide a means
whereby members of the Fund could contract with each other to plotect against liability o¡ loss under the Workers,
Compensation and Occupational Diseases Laws ofthe State oflllinois.

Tlìe County's cost is based on rates determined by the Trustees of tlìe Fund, applied to its pâyroll costs and adjusted for
its loss experience. Members ofthe Fund may also be subject to additional contibutions not to exceed l0 percent of
such member's contribution for the most recent fiscal year of the Fund if additional reserves are deemed necessary by
the Fund's trustees, No additional assessments have been made as of the cürrent year-end.
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Note l5 - Coìtiugcncies and Commitmcnts

Grant Contingency

Under terms of federal and state gralìts, periodic audits are required and certain costs may be queslioned leading to
possible reimbursement claims by grantor agencies,

Litiqatio¡ì

The County is involved in several lawsuits arising in the normal course of business, including clahns for property
damage and personal injury. The County canies insurance for these claims and has historicalìy been able to settle such
claims within the limits of its coverage. The likclihood of any loss in excess of these limits is not presently
determinable.

Courthôuse Renovations

Inllfay 2012, after an inspection ofthe Kankakee County courthouse, the Office ofthe Aftomey General ofthe State
of Illinois sent a letter to the County listing 159 dcficiencies within the courthouse relative to the Ame¡icans with
Disabilities Âct (ADA) that the County needs to address. The Counfy has also determined that the curent
courthouse does not meet the lllinois Supreme Court Standards pertaining to courtrooms and courthouse traflic
pattems, and does not meet space needs for current operations. Furthermore, the age of the court house and the
condition of the present mechanical and electrical systems present several challenges in meetiDg standards and
needs. The County has approved hiring an architectural engineering planning and design firm to complete a space
needs study, make design recommendations, and lead the County through the process of making a decision. The
County must also determine how these costs will be funded. The County has approved placing a question on the
ballot for the General Primary Election in March 2014 regarding a referendum for a tax increase with a specific
amount to be detemined later.

Notc 16 - Other Postemployment Bencfit (OPEB) Plâns

Plan Description: The County provides hxed payments to certain of its employees under a defined benefit healthcare
plan which is administcrcd by the County. These payments amount to $12.50 per month for each year ofservice upon
attainment of various specihed retirement ages and number of years of service; payments cease upon the retiree
attaining Medicare eligibilify status. In addition, the County provides for 100% ofthe healthcare premiurns for life for
eligible disabled police deputy and correctional officers. Ernployees are also eligible, upon retìrement, to participate in
the County health insu¡ance plan at their o\¡,,n cost until attainment of Medicare eligibility. Approved compensation
policies and agreements with collective bargaining units form the basis ofthe benefit struclure.

Funding Policv: The County's contributions, which are limited to the montbly stipends as described above, are
flnanced on a pay-as-you-go basis; this polìcy is reviewed annually by the goveming board.
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Note l6 - Othcr Postemploymcnt lìenefit (OPEB) I'larrs (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The County's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is calculated based olì the annual required contribution of the ernployer (ARC). An âmount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45 was implelnented on a prospective basis as of
November 30,2009. An actua¡ial valuation is required at least biennially. The Á.RC represents a level offunding
that, ifpaid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thifiy years. 'fhe County's annual OPEB cost aud related
info¡mation as ofNovember 30,201 I (as ofthe last actuarial study) is as followsl

Annual required contribution
lnterest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual requircd contribution
Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made
Increase in OPEB obligation (prepayment)
Net OPEB obligation (prepayment) beginning ofyear
Net OPEB obligation (prepayment) end ofyear

$100,682
(s43)
362

100,501
| 15.273
(t4;772)
(l0.8s9)

$125-631)

Trend Informãtion

Annual
Fiscal OPEB
Year Cost

tl/301t2+* s100,501
tU30lI1 100,501
tl/30/10* 104,4t4
1t/30/09 t04,4t4

%o of
OPEB
Cost

I 14.1Yo

1t4.7%
I t0.4%
I t04%

Net
OPEB

Oblieation
$(2s,63 r)
(2s,631)
(10,8s9)
(10,859)

*Results from 2009 actuarial study
++ Results ftom 2011 actuarial study

Funded Stalus: As ofNovember 30,201l, the most recent actuâriâl valuation dâte, the OPEB plan was 0% funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefts was $4,546,525, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial liability of$4,546,525. The schedule offunding progress, presented as RSI following the notes
to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued Iiability for benefits.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of repôrted amounts and assumptions about the pÌobability of
events far into the future, and actuarial determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual tesults are
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefìts fo¡ financial reporling puryoses are based on the substantive plan as understood by the
employfl and plan members and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattem ofsharing ofbenelìt costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The methôds and
assumptjons used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effecfs of short term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value ofassets, consistent with the long-term perspective ofthe calculations.

In the November 30, 201 I actuarial valuâtior'¡, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions
included a 5.0o/o investment Ìate ofretum including an inflation rate of3,0yo,a syo Vojected salary incrcase, and a
healthcare cost trend rate of 8.0%, initial, and 6.0% ultimate. The unñ¡nded actuarial accrued liabìlity is being
amortiTæd as a level percentage ofprojected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at Novernber
30,2011 was 30 years. 
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Note l6 - Other Postcmploymcnt Bcnefit (OPEIì) PIans (Continued)

IMRF Earlv Retirement

In November 2010, the CounÐ/ Board eìected to adopt an IMRF early retirement incentive (ERl) as provided for by
Section 7-l4l-l ofthe Illinois Pension Code. Dmployees with twenty years of creditable service in IMRF and who
were at Ieast50years ofage qualified. The ERI offer terminâted November 30, 2011. In conjunction witlì the ERI, the
County offered an early retirement health insurance incentive to those qualifying employees who clected to retire on or
before Novelnber 30, 2010. Management has detennined that the future costs and related disclosures for these health
insurance stipends are immaterial to the financial statements.

Notc l7 - Rclâfcd Party Trânsâctions

Upon the establishment of a County-lvide coordinated public safety communication system, the County of Kankakee
committed to an annual dispatch fee with annual increases not to exceed 4%o, Fees included in 911 emergency services
on the entity-wide statements and in the operating revenues of the 9l I System Fee Frìnd were $750,056 and include
outstanding recaivables fÌom the Counry in the amount of S 127,715 at November 30, 2012.

Note l8 - Other Disclosurcs

The county has agreements with the United States Marslìals Service and Cook County, Illinois to house prisoners in
local facilitjes. The agreement with the United States Marshals Service is in effect until terminated in writing by either
party. The ageement with Cook County will renew annually, if funded. The County is reimbursed at a rate of $60 pcr
prisoner, per day, under the Cook Counfy agreement. The reimbursement râte for the {Jnited States Marshals Service is
$72 per plisoner, per day. For the year ended November 30, 2012, revenues of approximately $ 10.55 million resulting
Íìom these agreements were recognized in the General Fund,

Note l9 - Recognition of Certâi¡r Rcvenues from the Stâte of Illinois

Generally accepted accounting principles expressly recognize the need for judgment and çonsistency in applying the
modified accrual basis of accounting to revenue recognitiôn. Generally, revenues otherwise not rccorded until received
should be accrucd if the date of the actual receipt is delayed beyond the normal time of receipt. Due to the State of
Illinois'fiscal crisis, cedain tax revenues and grants in aid in the amount of approximately $1,6 million were not
received before the close ofthe regular availability period and were delayed beyond the normal time ofreceipt. These
revenues were recognized in the General Fund as ofNovember 30,2012.

Note 20 - Impact of Rcccntly lssued Accounting Principles

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No.60, Accounling and Financial Reporlingþr Semice Concession
Arrangements. GASBS No. 60 provides financial repofing guidance for service concession anatìgements (SCAs).
This Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 201l. The County does not have any SCAs and
therefore the adoption ofGASBS No. 60 will not have any impact on the County's financiaÌ statements.

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No.61, The Financial Reporting Entity; Onn¡bus qn amendment of
GASB Ststements No. l4 and No.34. GASBS No, 6l provides additional critelia for classiging entities as component
units to better assess the accountability of elected officials by ensuring that the financial reporting entity includes only
organizåtions for which the elected officials are financially accountable or that are determined by the govenìment to be
misleading to exclude. This Statement is effective for periods beginning aflel June 15, 2012. Management has
evaluated all component units under the nelv criteria and determined that thc Kankakee County Public Building
Commission will need to be reported as a blended special revenue fund in future years. AII other component units will
be reponed in lhe same manncr as previous years,
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Notc 20 - Impact of Recettly ìssued Accounting Principles (Continucd)

ln December 2010, the GASB issued Statemerìt No. 62, Codífication ofAccounting and Fìnancial Reporting Guidance
Contsinerl in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB dnd AICPA Pronouncements. GASBS No, 62 incorporates into the
GASB's authoritative literature cellain accounting and financial repofting guidance that is included in the following
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or conhadict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulìetins of the American Institute of Cenified PubÌic Accountânfs'
(AICPA) Conmittee on Accounting Procedure. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after Decelnber 15,
201 l, which is fiscal year ending November 30, 2013, for the County,

In June 201l, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Finqnciql Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Reson.ces, Dq;[erred
Inflows of Resources, and Nel Posi¡lor¡, GASBS No. 63 provides guidance for reporting defered out{lows of
resources, defered inflows of resources, and net position in a staternent of financial position aDd related disclosu¡es.
The statement of net assets is renamed the statement of net position and includcs the following elements: assels,
deferred outflows of resoutces, liabilities, defeffed inflows of resowces, and net posifion. The provisions of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 201I, which is fiscal year
ending November 30, 2013, for the County. The statement of net position and balance sheet information will be
reclassified for any prior periods presented.

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No.64, Derivat¡ve Instruments; Applicøtion of Hedge Account¡ng
Terminqtion Provisions -- an amendtnent ofGASB Statenen¡ No. 53. GASBS No. ó4 provides clarification on whether
an effective hedging relationship continues afler the replacement ofa swap counterpady or a swap counterparty's credit
suppoft provider. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15,2011. Management does not
anticipate that fhe adoption of GASBS No. 64 will have any impact on the County's current or future financial
statements.

ln lvne 2012, the GASB issued Statoment No. 67, Financial Reporting Íor Pension Plqns - an qmendment of GASB
Slatement No.25, eflective for fiscal years begiming after June 15, 2013. The objective ofthis Statement is to improve
financial reporting by state and local govemrnental pension plans. The County does not administer pension plani and
therefore this statement wilÌ not impact its financial statements.

ln March 2012, the GASB issued Statelnent No.65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liqbilities. GASBS No.
65 establishes accounting and ltnancial repofing standârds that reclassiry, as defened outflows ofresources or defened
inflows ofresources, certain items that were previously repofted as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of
resources or inflows of resources, certain items thât were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This statement is
effective for peÌiods beginning after December 15, 2012, which is fiscal year ending November 30,2014 for the
County,

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections - 2012 - an amendment of GASB Støtetnent
No. I0 and No. ó2, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2012, which is hscal year ending Novmeber 30,
2014 for the County.

In June 2012, the GASB Stâtement No.68, Accounling and Financial Reportingfor Pensions - øn amendment ofGASB
Stqtement No.27, effcctive for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. The primary objective ofthis Sratement is to
improve accounting and financial reporling by state and local govemments for pensions.

Mânagement is cuffently evaluatìng the impact ofthe adoption of Statement Nos. 65, 66, and 68 on the County's future
financial statements, and has chosen not to early apply the provisions ofthese Stateme s.
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Kankakec County, IIIinois
Notes to Basic Fiìancial Stâtcmcnts
As ofând for fhc ycar endcd Novcmber 30, 2012

Notc 2l - Subsequc t Events

In December 2012, the County issued $5,395,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source),
Set ies 2012,/\ to advance refund a portion ofthe County's existing Debt Cenificatcs, Series 20058. The bonds provide
for serial retirement ofprincipal beginning December I, 2013 through 2024 a¡ìd interest payable at ratþs ofZVo to 2.5o/o,
secured by inmate housing fees ofthe General Fund, and a propefy tax |evy, ifnecessary.

ln January 2013, the County Board authorized the issuance of $4,000,000 2013 Taxable Cot?orate Purpose and
Pension Purpose Tax Anticipation WâlÏanfs due September 30, 2013 with arì ilìterest rate of.0930/o.
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Kânkrìkcc Coullt)', Illinois
Iì¡rdgclâry Compâr¡son Schcdulc
GcÍcrsl ¡'und - Rcvcllucs âlld Othcr FiDâncing Sources (Uscs)
FoÌ fhe Ycâr llndcd Novcmbcr 30. 2012

Or¡ginal

* Budgct

$ 4,731,055
'7 ,445,000

12,t76,055

2,250,000
940,000
20,000

2,0'73,90t
5,283,90t

347,000
2,283,000

9,300,000
l9),000
243,000
t 75,100

71,100
I2,610,800

I.t'lal
Budgot

$ 4,731,055

7,545,000
12,2',7 6,055

2,s50,000

940,000
70,000

2,190,901
5.750.90t

$ 4,721,370
7,485,321

12,206,691

2,521,619
864,184

65,515

2,072,209
5,523,527

386,057
2,091,608

10,709,'t72

217,242
266,122

160,8 r2
105,520

13,937,133

24,500
247,6t2

80,900
2,040

355.052

Ovcr (Undor)

!'inal
Budgel

$ (e,685)
(s9,679)
(69,364)

(28,38r)
(75,8r6)
(4,485)

(r 18,692)

(227,314)

(15,943)
(r9r,392)
(t90,228)

(13,7s8)

23,122
(r4,288)

(421,667)

500
4'Ì,612

900
(460)

48,552

(5,912)

I,324

(r 4,484)
3,690,000

6't3,604
59,569

4,408,689

Actuâl
l âxes:

Propefy taxes

Sôlcs lâx
Total taxes

Intergovem¡rgntal:
State iDcome tax

Replacement taxes
I¡ tcritånce tâx
Grants ând other reimbursements

Total infcrgovemlneùtûl

Charges for Services:

County Recorder fees

Circuil CIerk fees

Inmate housing and rcimbursomcnts

Buildìng arìd Zoning fees

Sherifffccs
Counly Clerk fees

Other feos and reimburseme¡ts
Tolal charges for serviccs

Liconse and Permitsl
Liquor licenscs

Cablc TV tranchise fees

Colìtractor lic€nses

Gambling machinelicenses
Total licenses and permits

Fines and Forfeits:
County fines and forfeitures
Roal estate tax ponalties

Total finos and forfeitr¡res

Intercst

Miscellaneous

Other fi nancing sourccs:

Transfers ir¡

Proceeds frorn refunding bonds
Prococds lìour long-tcmr debL

Premiunr on bonds sold

Total other fina¡cing sources

Total revenuos and other
financing sourccs

24,000 24,000
200,000 200,000
80,000 80,000
2,s00 2,s00

306,s00 306,s00

402,000
2,283,000

t0,900,000
231,000
243,000
175,100

299,000

824,000

48,200

324,000
525.000

223,428
495.834

849,000 719,262

48,200 49,524

Total general fund revent¡es as budgeted 33,598,956 32,194,777 (304,1?9)

Tort fund-seo Tort Liability
Budget Comparison Schedulc 2,333,431 2,333,431 _ 2,337,575 4,144

Total Benorâl fund revcnues as reportcd 33,592,387 35,932,38j 35,112,352 (800.035)

28.000

28,000 28,000

13,5 t 6

3,690,000
673,604

59,569
4,436,689

_s_l¿62$.q7 _q_l!f!g;y _q_12é2gr _!__t {9qq4
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Kan lrakec County, Illinois
Budgctary Conlparisor Schcd ulc
Gcneral Fuud - Expenditurcs
For thc Year EIded Novembcr 30, 2012

Original
Budget

$ 171,500

500

83,000

3,000

258,000

21,000

21,000

237,400
83,500

4,600

5,500

3ó7,000

Final
Budget

$ r ? 1,500

500

95,000

270,000

22,000
3,000

2,000

27 ,000

$ 164,193

104,363

939

269,495

23,040
7 t'l

1,83 6

25,593

$ (7,307)
(500)

9,363
(2,061)

(s0s)

1,040

(2,283)
(r64)

(1,407)

Over (Under)

Final
Actual Budget

General Govemment
Management lnformation Systems (MIS)

Personal services

Supplies

Capital outlay
Other services and charges

TOTAI MIS

Board ofReview
Personal services

Supplies

Other services and charges

Total Board ofReview

County Administration
Personal services

Contractual services

Supplies

Cap¡tal outlay
Otber services and charges

Total County Administration

County Auditor
Personal services

Confractual services

Supplies

Capital outlay
Other services and chalges

Total County Auditor

245,900

92,500
4,600

I1,000
36,000

390,000

25 I,085
9I,463

5,205
4.841

5,1 85

(t,031)
605

(6,r59)
35.07J o2'tt

387.667 (2.333)

115,750 I 15,750 103,046

43

4,t94
396

2,842

(12,704)

43

1,919

396
86.Ì

(e,479)

2,2't 5

t ,915 ) .97 5

120,000 120,000
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Kankakec County, Illinois
Budgctary Comparisol Schedulc
Gencral Fund - Expenditurcs
For the Ycar Bndcd Novcmber 30,2012

Original
Budget

t29,654
580

6,000

138,500

3 t6,670

62,850

137,380

48,100

56s,000

Iìinal
Budget

129,654

580

6,000

t 38,500

316,67 0

81,150

204,580
48,100

650,500

129,'t79

494
5,7 51

| ,4't 6

137,500

354,9'7 |
47 ,7 07

207,651
39,280

649,609

125
(86)

(24e)
(790)

(1,000)

3 8,3 0l
(33,443)

3,0.1 |
(8,820)

(8el)

Over (Under)

Final
Actual Budgct

General Governrnent (continued)

County Recorder
Personal services

Contractual services

Supplies

Other services and charges

Total County Recorder

Election Con]mission
Personal services

Contractual services

Supplies

Other services and charges

Total Election Conìmission

Regional Superintendent of Schools

Contrâctuaì servicas

County Clerk
Personal se¡vices

Supplies

Other services and charges

Total County Clerk

Buildings and Grounds
Personal services

Contractual services

Supplies

Capital outlay
Other services and charges

Debt service principal

Total Buildings and Grounds

348,s83 348,583 333,36t (ts,222)

Total Regional Superintendent ofSchools 348,583 348,583 333,361 (15,222)

164,033

18,250

I,zt'l

183,500

5 ts,294
100,306

r09,800
13,000

13,600

14,000

t64,033
18,250

5,717

188,000

698,294
195,306

157,800

209,000
r 13,600

14,000

t70,497
14,829

I,732

187,058

69s,496
174,880

186,919

205,824
124,040

6,464

(3,42r)
l? qRs ì

(e42)

(2,798)
(20,426)
29,t t9
(3,t76)
t0,440

(14,000)

|,387 ,t s9 (84r)766,000 1,388,000
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Kânl(al(ee County, Illinois
Budgctary Conrpr rison Schcdulc
Gencral Fund - Dxpetìditurcs
For thc Ycar Endcd Novclìbcr 30,2012

General Govemment (continued)

Capital Dovelopment
Contractual services

Capital outlay
Otlrer selviccs and charges

Debt service prirrcipal
Debt service interest

Total Capital Developmenl

l{ealth Insurance

Other services and charges

lnsurânces

Total llealth Insurance

Utilifies
Contractual services

Suppìies

Other services and charges

Total Urilities

Planning Depatment
Personal services

Contractual services

Supplies
Capital outlay
Other services and charges

Insurances

Total Planning Department

County Treasurer
Personal se¡vices

Contractual services

Supplies

Othcr services and charges

Total Counry'Ireasurer

Original
Budget

56,827

5,000

18,340

728,199
4t1,769

t,220,135

25,000
4,250,500

4,27 s,500

32,000
I,043,000

1,075,000

591,557

25,343
66,200

1,380

185,700

20,000

890, 180

152,550

4,500
3 8,000

5,4 50

200,500

Final
Budget

79,82'l
105,000

18,340
'Ì28,t99

411,7 69

1,343,135

25,000
4,000,s00

4,025,500

32,000

993,000

1,025,000

6l8,ss7
55,343
56,200

1,380

135,700

20,000

887,180

152,550

4,500
45,000

5,450

207 ,500

8 1,528

s24,030
t6,025

980,838

413,668

2,016,089

t6,236

3,93s,s82

3,951,818

26,699
615

983,230

1,010,544

60'7,024

47,013

4 0,1 85

3,t92
t47,877
29,588

8'74,8',79

151,039

6,808

44,s30
4,934

20'7 ,3 | t

1,70 t
419,030

(2,3t s)
252,639

t,899

672,9s4

(8,764)
(64,9 r 8)

(73,682)

26,699
(31,385)

(9,77 0)

(t4,456)

(11,533)
(8,330)

( 16,0 I 5)

1,812

12,t77

9,588

(12,30t)

(r,511)
2,3 08

(47 0)
(516)

(l8e)

Over (Under.)

F'inal

Actual Budget



KaIkâkec County, Illiu0is
Budgetary Comparison Schcdr¡lc
General Fuld - Ilxpenditures
For thc Year Etrdcd Novcmber 30, 2012

Original
Budget

t22,417
5,000
I,800
3,000

10,7 83

143,000

200.000

200.000

Final
Budget

t22,4t7
5,000

1,800

J, /óJ

l3 3,000

l t8,251
I t<\
2,074

2,362

t27,140

(4,166)
(s47)

tt,izt¡

(5,860)

(t,28r)
3,847

786
(2,60s)
(2,s40)

(r,793)

(e28)

350

(s78)

(6,609)
(2.008)

Over (Under)

F'inal

Actual Budget
Gene¡al Govemment (continued)

Finance DepaÍment
Personal services

Contractual services

Supplies

Capital outlay
Other services and charges

Total Finance Depaftment

Contingency
Other services and charges

Total Contingency

Supervisor of Assessments

Personal services

Conffactual services

Supplies

Capital outlay
Other services and charges

Total Supervisor of Assessments

ZBA - BOE Planning
Personal services

Contractual services

Total ZBA - BOE Planning
Total Gcnerâl Government

Economic Development
Personal services

Contractual services

Total Economic Dcvelopment

256,500
7 6,635
19,365

4,000
8,500

365,000

8,000

$ l r,144,898

256,500

7 6,63s
19,365

4,000
8,500

36s,000

4,000

4,000

8,000

255,2t9
80,482

20,151

1,395

5,960

363,207

3,072

4,3 50

7,422

4,000

4,000

_q__!41I9!_ _î_JU!rlJl- _L__ll.1ls

131,000 $

r0,000
156,000 s

14,000
t 49,39 | $

I I ,992

$ 141,000 $ 170,000 $ 161.383 T---lsrrÐ
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Kankâkcc Cornty, Illitìois
Budgctâry Cornparison Schcdule
Geueral Fund - Expcnditures
For thc Year Ended Novenrber 30. 2012

Original
Budget

$ 152,900

t37 ,37 5

't ,650
1,000

31,07 5

7,000

337,000

61 1,100

39,000

I 1,500

8,400

670,000

28,137

7 ,821
9,542

4s,500

Final
Budget

$ 1s2,900

137,3'75
'1,650

r,000

31,075

7,000

337,000

6 t 1,100

39,000

I1,500

8,400

670,000

28,137
7 ,821
o \i1

45,500

39,1t2
3,000

21,800
I,500

99,588

s 1s8,487

t3t,372
8,t22

23,230
2,732

323,943

548,597

34,384
450

7,280

590,71I

?ô sss
110t

96

33,845

39,032
3,090

15,002

5,430
94,288

$ 5,587
(6,003)

472
(1,000)
(7 ,84s)
(4,268)

( 13,057)

(62,s03)
(4,6r6)

(r 1,050)
(1,120)

(79,28e)

2,81 8

(s,027)
(e,446)

(l1,65s)

(80)

90
(6,198)
3,930

(s,300)

Over (Under)

Final
.A.ctual Budget

Judiciary and Court Related

Circuit Court
Personal services

Contractual services

Supplies

Capital outlay
Other services and charges

InsulaDces

Total Circuit Couft

Ci¡cuit Clerk
Personal services

Supplies

Capital outlay
Other services and charges

Total Circuit Clerk

Child SuppoÍ and Maintenance
Personal services

Supplies
Other services and charges

Total Clìild Süpport and Maintenance

Jury Commission
Personal services

Contractual services

Supplies
Capital outlay
Other serviccs and charges

Total Jury Commission 165,000 t 56,842 (8.158)

39,1t2
3,000

21,800
1,500

99.588
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Kânkâkcc Cou (y, Illirois
Iludget8ry Comparison Schedulc
General Fund - Expenditures
For the Year Bnded Novenrbcr 30.2012

Oliginal
Budget

I,682,765
25,400
26,7 43

25,000
5,500

39,000

1,804,408

7 66,062
3,700
6,650

300

3,288

780,000

t,l4'1,996
1,500

1,000

13,600

5,000

t,169,096

32,000

97.000

I,'inal

Budget

I,682;t6s
2s,400
26,743

25,000

5,500

39,000

1,58 1,709

12,93 5

21,683
300

2,6t I
28.836

(r01,0s6)
(t2,46s)

(s,060)
(24,7 00)
(2,889)

(r0,164)

(rs6,334)

87

(t62)
2t6

(300)
(2s4)

Over (Under')

Iìinal
Actual Budget

Judiciary and Coufi Related (continued)

States Aftorney
Personal sefvices

ContÌactual seryices

Supplies
Capital outlay
Other seryices and charges

hìsurances

Total States Attomey

Public Defender
Personal services

ContlactuaÌ Seryices

Supplies

Capital outlay
Ofher services and clìarges

Total Public Defender

Probation

Personal services

Contractual services

Supplies
Capital outlay
Other services and charges

Insurances

Total Probation

DNDC
Contractual Services

Other services and charges

Total DNDC

Juvenile Detention Center
Contractual services

Total Juvenile Detention Centcr

Total Judiciary and Court Related

1,804,408

773,062
3,7 00

6,650

300

78't,000

t,181,996

1,500

1,000

13,600

5,000

I,203,096

32,000
123,000

t,648,07 4

77 3,149
ì 5 ìR

6,866

3,034

1, t 81,130

960
1,359

7,970
t0,925

1,202,344

t3,525
t41,990

155,515

8'15,547

87 5,541

$ 5,773,408

(866)
(1,s00)

(40)

1,359

(5,ó30)
5 0r5

(7 s2)

(r E,47s)

18,990

515

54',7

547

_I___(2ÉgëO.

'786,587 (413)

129,000 155,000

875,000 875,000

875,000 875,000

$ 5,97s,004 $ ó,042,004
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Karrkakee Counly, Illinois
Budgctâ ry CompaÌisol Schedulc
Genelal tr'und - ExÞenditu rcs
For the Ycar Ended November 30,20I2

Public Safe6,

She¡'iffs Ofhce
Personal services

Contlactual services

Supplies

Capital outlay
Other services and charges

Total Sheriffs Office

Corrections
Personal se¡vices

Contractual services

Supplies

Capital outlay
Other services and charges

Total Corrections

Auxiliary Police
Supplies

Total Auxiliary Pôlice

Coroner
Personal services

Contractual services

Supplies

Capital outlay
Other services and charges

Total Co¡oner

Origiual
Budget

s 3,827 ,227
77,600
33,67 5

29,400
369,590

4,337,492

6,408,287

13,84s
102,788

t3,364
| ,36 |,716

7,960,000

2,500

2,500

209,100
85,000

2,800
1,200

16,900

315,000

I'inal
Budget

s 4,022,227

77,600
48,6',ì5

29,400
495,5 90

4,673,492

7 ,108,287
100,845

t02,788
13,364

I ,908,7 t 6

9,234,000

t \rìô

223,100
140,000

2,800

1,200

16,900

384,000

$ 4,04s,96 r

33,460

54,002
) )'74

53ó,881

4,672,583

7,259,0t2
110,012

t32,7 68

5,153

t,993,1't0

9,500,1ls

t,'t20

|,'ì20

223,024
138,170

|,963
298

t9,'166

383,221

s 23,734
(44,140)

5 ì?7

(2'7,tzt)
¿1 )O1

(eoe)

150,725

9,16'7

29,980
(8,21l)
84,454

266,t t 5

(780)

(780)

(76)
( r,830)

(837)
(e02)

2.866

(77e)

Over (Under)

Final
Actual Budget
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Kanl(akee Couufy, Illinois
Budgef ary Conparison Schcdule
Gencrâl !'und - Expcnditurcs
For the Yeâr Endcd Novcmber 30,2012

Over (UDder.)

Original Final Irinal
Budget Budget Acrual _ Pudget

Public Safety (continued)

Dispatch Services

Co[tractual services

Total Dispatch Services

Merit Commission
Personal services

Supplies

Other services and charges

Total Merit Commission

ESDA
Personal services

Contracfual services

Supplies

Capitâl outlay
Other services and charges
Insurances

TOTAI ESDA

Total Publ¡c Sâfety

Total general fund expenditures as budgeted

Ton fund-see Tort Liabiliry
Budget Comparison Schedule

Total general fund expenditures as reported

Other financing sources:
Transfers out
Refunded debt proceeds paid to escrow âgent
Cost ofissuance of long-terrn debt

Total othet financing sources

Total expenditures and olher financing sources

615,500

5 65,500

750 750
150 150

4,100 11,100

5,000 t2,000

10,201 (899)

t0,827 (1,t73)

565,500

555,479

555 ¿7q

(10,021)

(10,021)

625

I
(12s)
(t49)

103,4ó0

1 ,97 5

4,550
6,140

27 ,798

t44,073

_$__11I24!_

_p_30é40/67

_$_-219Jê41_

_s_1L9t¿u1_

$ 646,4_89

_q____gfl!e

I t9,460
5,47 5

4,550
15,140

37,298
150

182,0'73

_$.__1l!lié!r_

_!-]2$9!61

_q___L!l!.qL

$ 35,931,314

1t2,32'.1

5,658

3,954
t4,239
43,9t6

181,20't

_$._-ir4r,152_

-!_!!!9€t6

J__22!:224

J_]j2323t0

s 1,078,676

3,6't2,28'Ì
'77,282

s 4,828,245

(7,133)

1öJ

(se6)
(e01)

6,618

963

18661

_q___2:r$r_

_!____19!f1e

_q_jr01,8sÐ

$ 300,996

$ 232,187

3,672,28't
'77,282

$ 3,981,7s6

846,489

s 846,489

$ 33,688,803 $ 36,77'1,803 s 41,060,555 S 4,282,752



Kankakee Coung, lllinois
Iludgetary Comparison Schcdule
Tort Liability Fund (r.eportcd in General Fund)
For thc Year Dnded Novcmber 30, 2012

Revenues:

PropeÍy taxes

Intelgovel nmental

Interest olì ilìvestnìents

Miscellaneous

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Personal services

Contractual seryices

Supplies and materials

Capital outlay
Other services and charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Original
Budget

$ 2,289,831

2,000
1,600

40,000

2,333,431

488,447

I,786,000
7,800

1,000

I 18,600

2,401,847

$ (68,4 r6)

Final
Budget

$ 2,289,831

2,000

1,600

40,000

2,333,431

563,447

2,401 ,000
7,800

1,000

t77,600

3,1s0,847

_$__(8U4q

s 2,285,125

9,909
341

42,200

2,337,575

576,462

2,t34,t00
6,215

229,2t1

2,945,994

_!___g9u_12

$ (4,706)

7,909
(t,2se)
2,200

4,144

l3,0l s

(266,900)

( 1,s8 s)
(1,000)

5t,611

(204,8s3)

_$__ 4!¿21_

Over
(Under)

Actual Budget

63



Kaukakce Ccuuty, Illiuois
Budgctary Comparison Schcdule
Pension Fund
Fol the Ycar [ndcd Novcnrber.30, 2012

Original
Iludget

$ 4,806,752

3 5,000

2,100

4,843,852

4,744,200

Final
Budget

s 4,806,752

3 5,000

2,100

4,843,852

5,294,200

s 4,796,874

50,299

4,847,839

5,204,894
tz,02l

$ (9,878)

15,299

(1,434)

3,987

(89,306)

t2,021

Over
(Under)

Aclual lSudget

Revenues:

Propefy taxes

Intelgovernmental
Interest on investments

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Personal services

Debt service interest

TotaI experiditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

4,744,200 5,294,200 5,216,91s (89,306)

_Ï_-_22Á2_ -$__l18i3Ð_ _$._Cf24Zq. _þ____81272



Kankakcc Counfy, Illinnis
ßudgctary Comparison Schedulc
County Ilighway F-und

For the Year Ended Novcrnber 30, 2012

Revenues:

Property taxes

Fines and fees

Interest on investments

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expendilures:

Personal services

Contractual services

Capital outlay
Other seruices and charges

Total expenditures

Excess (defÌciency) of levenues

over expenditures

Original
Budget

s 1,817,442

478,800

1,600

t7,040

2,314,882

1,5 85,097

379,600
I,650,000
1,279,000

4,893,697

$ (2,s78,81s)

Final
Budget

s 1,817,442

478,800

1,600

1'.7,040

2,3t4,882

1,585,097

379,600
I,650,000
t,279,000

4,893,697

$ (2,578,81s)

$ 1,812,990

724,808
1,725

93,876

2,633,399

1,205,685

t7 ,7 53

2l 9,890

800,703

2,244,031

_$___lg2t68_

318,517

(319,412)
(361,847)

(1,430,1l0)
(478,297).

(2,649,666)

_$_2¿68ül_

Over
(Under)

Actual Budgct

g (4,4s2)
246,008

t25
76,836



Kaukakee County, Illinois
lì.cquired Supplementary Iufornation - Schcdule of Fünding Progress

t2/3t /t I

t2/3tlt0

Illiìois Municipâl Retire lllent Fund

Actuarìal
Actuarial Value of
Valuation Assets
Date (a)

RequIar Countv E¡nÞloyees
t2/31/12 s32,262,0'77

Unfunded
AAL Funded

(UAAL) Ratio
lb-a) (a,/b)

s15,259,809 6'7.89%
14,787,432 65.67%
tt,669,342 72.70%

UAAL as a

Percentage
Cove¡cd ofCovered
Payroll Payroll

(c) ((b-a)/c)

s19,349;775 78.86%
18,534,6t2 '19.78%

19,46',7,963 59.94%

$181,18r 2388.79%
173,35s 2497,|%
243,762 t673.30%

November 30,
2010*

2t
203
28'7

Þ11

28,284,708
31,076,880

Actuadal Accrued
Liability (AAL)

Enhl Age
tb)

s47,szt,886
43,02'r,140
42,746,222

$2,188,988
2,13t,7 66
2,028,065

Elected Ofliciâls
r2t31tt2 $(2,139,053)
t2l3t/11 (2,197,092)
12/31110 (2,050,809)

$4,328,041
4,328,858
4,078.8'7 4

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Sherifls Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP)
t2/31/12
t2l3t/tt
l2/31/t0

ss,762,265 $ 17,841,89?
4,049,412 t4,593,98'l'7,'t8t,424 17,301.582

$t2,079,632 3230yo S3,982,668 303.3to/o
t0,544,57 5 27.75% 3,786,649 278.47%
9,520,158 44.98% 4,082,570 233.t9%

Unfunded
AAL Funded

(UAAL) Ratio
lb-a) lâ,'t )

$4,546,525 0.0o/o**
4,546,525 0.0%
1,527 ,209 0.0yo *

1,527 ,209 0.0%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2012, is $33,43?,088 and $(2,087,924), for
County Regular and Elected County Ofïicìal members, respectively. On a market basis, the funded ratio would be
7 0 .36Vo and 0 .00Vo, respectively.

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2012 is $6,321J29 for the Sherifls Law
Enforcement Personnel. On a market basis, the funded ratio would be 35.43%,

Othcr Postcmploymcnt Benefit (OPEB) Plân

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL)
Vâluation Assets Entry Age
Dare (a) (b)

t|3t/12 $-0- $4,546,s2s
l1/30/It -0- 4.546,525
I l/30/10 -0- t,527,209
tl/30/09 -0- t,52'7,209

Membership in the plan consisted ofthe following

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits
Active vested plan members
Active nonvested plan members

Total

*Results fiom 2009 actuarial study
** Results ÍÌom 20l I actuariaÌ study

November 30,
20t2

37
200
233
aa

November 30,
2011

37
200
233
ala



Kanl(âkcc County, Illinois
Notes to Rcquircd Supplementary Inforrnâtion
As ofard for fhe year cndcd Noveurbcr 30, 2012

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting plinciples for the Geneml and
Special Revenue Funds. All annual appÌopriations lapse at fiscal yea¡ end.

1'he County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

The County receives a proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing December l. The operating budget
ittcludes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. A public hearing is conducted to obtajn
taxpayer comments. Prior to DecembeÌ l, the budget is legally enacted by the County Boar.d.
Responsibility for control of and amendmenls to the budget rests with the County. Supplernental
appropriations totaling $4,87?,600 were approved Dece¡nber I 1, 2012.

The following funds had expenditules in excess of appropriations for the year ending November 30, 2012:

Actual Budget Amount in Excess
Amount Amount ofAþÞroÞriations

General Fund (excludilg Torl) $33,286,316 $32,780,467 $505,849

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
'lreasureÍ's Interest 39,265 20,000 19,265

Coroner Fee 40,773 30,100 10,673

Health Fund 3,068,808 3,044,675 4,261

6'/



Othcr Supplcmcntary I nformaf ion



Kânkâkcc County, Illilois
Tort Liâbility Insr¡rance Fund
Other Supplcmertary lnformatiorr - Disclosure of Tor.t Expcnditut.es undcr. PA 91-0628
November 30, 2012

Propeny and liability insurance 51,044,279
Illinois Public Risk Fund, workmen's cornpensation insurânce '774,869
Salaries (States Attonìey, CiviÌ Division and administrative) and related benefits 421,944
IÌlinoisDepañmentofEmploymentSecurity,unemploymentinsurance 154,518
River Valley Delention Center insurance 35,430
Litigation Fees 24j,046
Miscellaneous clailns, net of insurance reitnbuÌ sements 105,040
Other 162,8ó8

82.945.994



Kankakee County, Illinois
Combining Balance Shcct - General Fund
Novcmbcr 30, 2012

General

Fund

Toñ
Fund

Total
General

Elir¡inations ìrund
Assets

Cash

Investnìelìts, at cost

Receivables (net of applicable
allowances for estimated

uncollectible amounts):

Taxes, including interest,
penalties, and liens

Accounts
Prepaid expenses

Due from other funds
Inventory, ât cost

Total assets

Liabilitics and Fund Balanccs
Liabilities:

Vouchers and accounts payable

Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Non-spendable:
Prepaid items

Inventory
Restricted for:

Tort liabilig'/claims
Unassigned

Total fund balance
Tolal liabilities and fund balanee

163,437 163,437
$ 10,812,s64 $ 4,006,1e6 $ (i;0s0p0Ð -sl5J¡sJ60-

$ 1,900,047 $ 119,074 $ - $ 2,019,121
3,687,390 - (1,0s0,000) 2,637,390
4,580,00s 2,5s8,223

10,t67,442 2,677,297 (1,050,000) |,794,739

I I 8,136

8,323

4,498,830

5,948,045
29,732

46,061

29,732

t63,437

236,061

15,03 I

117,925

6,708

) s)) '1)'7

t8,741
290,495

1,0s0,000 (1,050,000)

290,4_95

I,03 8,404

7 ,021,157
5,966,786

320,227

46,06r

320,227

t63,437

I,038,404
45t.95345t,953
645,122 1,328,899 - 1,974,021-fEslrl¡4- -S 4J0-õr% -S- 

dpsCõoot -S- t3JBsJ60-

70



Kank¡kee Counfy, Illinois
Stafcmcnt of Rcvenucs, ExpendifuÌes, ånd Chânges in Fund Balanccs
Gcncral Fund
For the Ycar Endcd Novcmber 30, 2012

General

Fund

Tort
Fund

Total
General

Fund
Revenues:

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeits
Interest on investÌnents

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

General government

Judiciary and court related
Publìc safety
Economic development

Capital outlay
Debt service principal
Debt service interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from refunding bonds
P¡oceeds fiom long-term debt
Premium on bonds sold

Refunded debt proceeds

paid to escrow agent

Cost of issuance of longterm debt
Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balanccs, beginning ofycar
Fund balances, end ofyear

$ t2,206,691
5,523,527

13,937,t33
355,052

719,262

3,s88
49,524

32,794,771

9,807,748

5,"t65,869

t s,283,261

161,383

873,549

980,838

4t3,668
33,286,316

(491,s39)

13,516

(1,078,676)

3,690,000

673,604
59,569

(3,6'72,287)

(77,282)

(391, ss6)

(883,09s)

1,528,217

_þ___9!!]22

s 2,285,t25
9,9_09

ìot
42,200

2,337,57 5

2,945,994

,g4sgr4

(608,419)

(608,419)

1,937,318

$ 1,328,899

$ 14,491,8 t 6

5,533,436

13,931,t33
355,052
719,262

3,929

9r,724
35,132,352

12,753,142

s,7 65,869

15,283,261

t 6l,3 83

8 73,5 49

980,8 3I
413,668

36,232,310

(1,099,958)

13,5 I 6

(1,078,676)

3,690,000

673,604

59,569

(3,672,287)
(77,282)

(391,ss6)

( 1,491,5 l4)

3,46s,s3s
$ r,974,02r



Ka¡rl(akcc Counfy, lllinois
CombiniÙg Balancc Shcct - NonmajoÌ Govcrnmcntal Funds
Novcnlbcr 30.2012

Nonrnajor
Spocial

Rovenuo

$ 4,368,798

5,592,489

2,289,803
430,9t3
239,226

20,st1
811,400

422,068
198,660

_p_J!31:,87_4

Capital
Projects

lbtal
Nonmajor

Gove¡nmenf.al

Funds

$ 5,0r6,851
5,592,489

2,883,962

430,9 r3
239,226

20,5t?
t,212,390

422,068

198,660

_$_r!1z!1!_

$ t,298,7't4
46,06t

Dsbt

Se¡vice
Asscts

Cash

Investmonts, at cost

Reccivables, (net, \.vhere applicable
of allowance for uncollectibles):
Taxes, including interest, penalties and liens
Accounts

Loans

Prcpaid expenses

Due fi om other funds

Due f¡om othcr governments

lnventory, al cost

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balanccs:
Liabilities

Vouchcrs and accounts payablc

Due to other funds
Dcfeffed revenuo

Total Iiabilities

Fund balances:

Non-spendable:

Prepaid items

Inventory
Restricted for:

Gene¡al government

Debt service
Jud¡ciary and couÍ
Public safety

Health and welfare
Transportation
Economic development
Câpital projects

Total fund balance

Total ¡iabilities ând fund balance

$ 571,537 $

594,159

7 6,5t6

_q_u!É{!q _s__g6ll6

990 400,000

$ 1,283,461 $ 990

46,061

2,328,956 599,025

3,658,478 600,015 14,32t 4.272.8t6

s i4.323

4,503
178,493

632,68s

1,448,304

133,024

2,165,684

5,6t2,t98
540,505

r0,715,396

s66,6't t

462,193
s66,6',7 | 462,t93

4,503

t7 8,493

632,68s

566,67 t
1,448,304

133,024

2,165,684

5,612,198

540,505

462,t93
11,'t 44,260

S 14,373,8'14 $ 1,166,686 S 47(),516 $ 16,01?,026

72



Kankakcc CoüÌrty, Illillois
Combining Statctne l of Reyenucs, Iìxpcndiiurcs,
and Cllângcs in Fund Balance - Nonmajor Govcrnmcnfâl Funds
Fol fhc Ycal Endcd Novcrnber 30, 2012

Nonmaj or

Special

Revenue

s 2,326,6s6

7,230,603

186,873

1,3'12,87 4

14,233

105,698

11,236,937

347,775

990,t4 |
33 5,85 7

2,767,472

4,680,083

2,269,247

2,055,041

82,269
7< 9)\

r 3 ,603,810

(2,366,873)

(328,t t2)
(328,1t2)

(2,694,98s)

13,4 t 0,381

$ 10.715.396

Capital
Projects

Total
Nonrrrajor

Governtnental

Funds

$ 2,9t2,094
'7,230,603

186,873

|,372,8'7 4

14,s83

I06,218
I t,823,245

356,525

1,569,701
?'ìç r(7

2,7 67,4'72

4,680,083

2,269,247

2,082,289

983,4't9

588,755

15,633,408

(3,8 t 0,l 63)

I,393,2't2
(328,112)

1,065,160

(2,74s,003)

Debt

Service
Revenues;

'laxes

Intsrgovernrnental

Licenses and permits
Fines and fees

Interest on itìvestments
Miscellaneous

Total rgvenues

Expenditures:

General govemnìent

Judiciary and court related
Public safcty

Public health and welfare
Transporlation
Economic development

Capital outlay
Debt service principal

Debt service interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
exp€nditures and otber sources (uses)

Fund balance, beginning ofyear
Fund balance, end ofyear

585,438 $

i,o
520

5 86,308

8,750

2't7,405

901,210

5t2,830
1,700,195

(1,1 13,887)

302.1 55

27,248

329,403

(329,403)

1,393,272

I 1()'t )7)

279,38s

28't,286

_$____rÉq,671_

(329,403)

791,s96-S---l6Ztq3-



Krnkâke€ County, Illinois
Mrjor ard Nonmåjor Specirl Revenue Funds
Bålancc Shects

November 30, 2012

Assets

Cash

IrvestsnenLs, at cost

Receivables:

Taxes (net of allowâ¡æ for
estimated uncollectibles)

[Æans

Prepaid expenses

Due from other funds

Due ftom otber govemments

Inventory, at cost

Total assets

Li¡bilities ând Fùnd Bålânce
Liabililiesl

Voùcheß payable

Due to other funds

Defen€d revenue

Totâl liabi¡ities

Fund ba¡ances:

Non-spendabìe:

Prepaid items

Inventory
Restricted for:

Genel"l governrnent

Debt service

Judiciary and coun
Public safety

Heâlth ¿¡d welfare
Tr¿¡sportation

Economic development

Retirement

Capitâl proje.ts

Assig¡ed to tr¿nspo¡lation

Unassigned

Totâl fund bâlarce
Totâl liabilitìes and tund baìa¡ce

Coùnty Marching Recorder Clerk Treasure¡ Tr€?sureis Subrecipjenl
Pensjop Highway Tã\ Compúe¡ Computer Computer lnterest Gr¿¡Ls

s 242,'t44 $ 1,66E,065 $ 596,275 S 56,317 S 53,085 $ 74,438 S 33.479 S _

- 1,289,677 2,506,4't3 1,287 E25 694 ó0-318

5,042,n1 1,854,616 845,938
t45,6.15 t93.9¿8 

-

I,425,000

- 25r.;04 :

_i__q.!fJ_2!_ __q_l2sif]g_ _i__lt19i!6

$ 652,512 S 187,3't4 $ 96,94t

s,0E2,642 1,869,666 853,1s8

5.735,154 2,057,060 2,186 2.16 9,83t 169,212

99E

3.349
50,000

_!Jll.el'

,.i0, - - tco.ìtz

- 707

$ 56,65a S 75,819 S 93'791 S 1692t2

- ì06,436 56,383 65,301 93,7-97 
-

--z,ss|,;E|'.--.-
r rtr ô1Á

-r,rorjou-----.
lJrr¡36 ]J0oj50 ,,998J8? l0q?8s 56J83 6óJ08 g3lr7 

-
-!_égua- -!_lf!l!.10 i__rrll]- -i___l!,qtl l____ztql _i____:i¡r l___r:!n

l1¿q
)5t ln¿

$ 2,186

------l

$ 276 s 9,831 $-

---__________i_

s 169,2_',12

70'7



Kånkakee Counç, Illinois
Måjor ând Nonnåjor Speciâl Revcnre Funds
BÂlânce She.ts
November30,20t2

Asscts

Cash

I¡vesÍne¡ts, at cost

Receivables:

Taxes (net ofailow¿¡ce for
estimated uncollectibles)

lÆa¡s

Prepâjd expenses

Due f¡om other fu¡ds
Dùe Fom other governments

Inventory, at cost

Total assets

Liåbil¡tiês and Fund Bslânc€
Liabilities:

Voùch€ß pa)ãble

Due to other funds

Deferred revenue

Tot¿.Iliabilities

Fund bâlances:

Non-spendalle:

Prepâid rtems

IlNenlory
Restricted fo.:

Gener¿.] goveñment

Debt servrce

ludLcjâry â¡d court
Public safety

Health a¡d welfa¡e

Tmrspor¡¿tion
fuonomic development

Retirement

Câpital projecfj

--l Assigned to tEnsportâtion
' Unâssrgned

Toøl fund balance

Total liabilìties and fund balance

S€.uriry

Fee

$ s5,544

21,394

Document l,aw Seryice Funds -State,s Vrctims and Dispute Administrâtiorì,/
Stor¿ge Library Fee Anomey Wirness ES:91,nfg¡_ Operâtions

10,036 li,iss

_ 441

50,000 250,000

_q___.1_:ql4 _q___æ!298

$ 120,512

t9l
$ 1,683 5 83,405 $ 62,220 5 61,408 $ 9,948 S 13,187

- t,267 50,608 50,548

3,880 '7,5t4 - 149 325 t,777

--...*,*o
.

s 5.56J 5 92.186 S 1t2.828 5 lt2.r05 s t0273 $ 5%,¡6¿

$ 10,502 s 3216 S 3,880

10,502 32't6 3,880 .t,854

- 385,215 1,683
17Ã t1)

44'7

'7,854

I,400

$ 6,699

t:.,i_zt

552

r05.;06

5s2

t0,213



Kânk kee County, IlliÌois
Mrjor ând NonmajorSp€ci!l Revenu€ Funds
8åìãncc Sheets

November30,2012

Ass€ts

Cash

lnvestrnents, at cost

Receivabìes:

Ta\es (net of alÌo\'!ã¡ce for
es1 irnated uncollectibles)

l-oâ.ns

Prepâid expenses

Due from other funds

Due from other goveñments

IrìveÞtory, ât cost

Totâl asseLs

Lisbililies ând Fund Bâlâ¡cc
Liabiliiies:

Vouchers payåble

Due to other funds

Defered revenue

Totâlliabilities

Fund balânces:

Non-spendable:

Prepâid ilems

InventoìJ
Restrictei io¡l

GeneÍâl govemment

Debt servic€

Judiciary ¿¡d coun
Pìrblic safety

Heålth and welfare
Tr¡r¡sportation
Economic development

Retirement

Câpitâl projectj

Assigned ¡o tr¿.lsportation

Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and ñ¡nd bâlarce

Automation Prog¡am Medic¿l AccorÌnt Fee He¿lth Assistânc€ Shenff t-Ðans

s st3,497 S (9,t7s) S 9,143 $ 900 S 75,657 S //!O,1t2 S 286,337 $ I S 301,2,79
9,299 1.205.948 l'78.216

Cowt Improvement Arestee SberifTBL Co¡one/s Vetera¡s Funds - CDAP

tt.i.¿t e,Lo iu '- 
t.ou

150,000 16,400

31t 
"'70'7- 30.151

_L__q9q,gr $ ìJ.J45 5 9,895 S 900 S 28,?56 S 2.459,E80 S Sql¡¡ S I s i44<0{

s 5,396

!
ol

5,396 13,250 24,000 ?23,643

$ 13,250 $

685,447

,,0*
$-$-

- 24,000

95

68s,441 % E95 - 
'00 

01" tt36lt
_Ê___q29,!€- _$_____!1i15 _L____9,q2I- _!--_ 4J!6 s 2,4se.880 $ 5ei,o2r

895

$ 231,516 S 10,089 S

- t3,061

492.127 128,438

900 /11<É.

n.n*u



Kânkrkee Coùr1.v, Illinois
Major ând Nonmâjor Speciål Reaenu. Fünds
Balånc€ Sheets

November 30, 2012

Assets

Cash

Investsnents, at cost
Receivablesi

Taxes (net of allo\r€nce for
estimated uncollectibles)

I-o¿¡s

Prepâid expenses

Due from other funds

Due Íiom other govemments

hventory, at cost

Total assets

Liåbilities ând Fund Belânce
Liâbilities:

Vouchers payable

Due to other fi.inds

Defened ¡evenue

Totzl liabrlities

Ftmd balå¡ces:

Non-spendable:

P¡€paid items

lnveDtory

Restricþd for:
Gene¡al govemment

Debt servrce

ludiciary and coufi
Publìc s¿fety

He¿ith and ùelfâ¡e
Transpodation
Economic development

Retirement

Câpitâl projects

Assìg¡ed to t¡a¡sportâtion
Unassigned

Tot¡l tund bala¡ce
lotal liabilitres a¡d tund bala¡ce

Motor Fuel Cou¡¡ty To$,nship
T¿x Bridse Bridse

s 527,43'1 S 937,040 I 44.266
600.475 901,456

- 845,937

roð:rv/ _ t98.660 449 964s 1.406.780 $ 2,ó84433 S *166 $ lrr€lo ! 5JI] $ 
'rOJ?r 

S-1"ni.s74 5-16-"57 6A

Infonmtion
System

s 58,671

3,490

s 120282 S 379 92 r

Mani€e
Fund

1233,079 2,042 210,3.t1 3,658,478 11,450,692

851,158

Toral
WIA Nonmajor
Gr¿nts Funds Total

_ 2,289,803 9,18¿190
Á¿a 430.91ì .t10,536

5,0r3

168,507

- 1i0,768

L I 17.99ì t.4sl,j54 44,266

lo,ul4 20,517 20,51.7250'000.-:il'Í::.1::12'"

s 6,59 $ 4,368.798 S 6,279.607
5.592,489 6,882.166

2,042

16,014

.1.299.!?9 tts1l54 *r_::_ 3rq?68 5pr3
$ t,¿06.780 $ 2.684.41J $ ¿4.26ô 5 lt2,8to $ 5,0tJ T zlo.¡zt $ 14 37] 874

239,226

20.517

s 208,a96 $ 1,283.461 S 2,t23,34'7
- 4ó,061 46,061

2,0'75 2.328,9s6 9281284

422.068

239.22ó

422,068

s,ol:

4,503

t78.493

632.685

t,448,304
133.024

2.165,684

5,6 t2,t 98

540 505

4,503
429.797

632,685

1,44E,304

133,424

2.165,684
5,612,198

540,505

1,121,036

2,949.246

t5,0i6,982

_!__26!31,674



Ksnkåkee County, Illinois
Major and NonDajor Special Revenue Fu¡ds
Stâtements of Revenues, Expênditures ând
Châng€s in Fund Bâlânc€s
For the Year Ended Novernber 30, 2012

Revenues:

P(operty taxes

Intergovemmental

Licenses a¡d pe¡mits

Fines a¡d fees

Interest oD investrneDts

Miscella¡eous
Total revenues

bene.al gorr"--"ot
Judiciary and coù¡t related

Public safety

Public he¿lth a¡d welfa¡e
Transportation

Economic development

Capitâl outlay

Debt service p¡incipal

Debt servic€ interest

Total expenditu¡es

Excess (defìciency) of ¡€venues

over expenditures

Other fina¡cing sources (uses):

Operating t¡a¡sfers out

Total ot¡er fina¡cing sources (uses)

Excæss (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures ¿¡d other fiûa¡cing
soùfc€s (uses)

Fund balanc€. begi¡ning ofyear

J Frurd bulance, end ofyear

Pe¡sion Highway Tax Computer Compute¡ Computer Inlerest C¡¡a¡ß

s 4,196,874 $ 1,812,990 $ 868,719 S $ _ S _ $ - s
50,299 6ß,445

- 724,808 _ t27,133 25,8t4 t9,634 15.880
666 1,725 s,154 35 140 t92 139

93.876 _ - lt.i25
4J47"83' 

'.6333r' 
873.873 trzl68 

-15954 
10.%1 l6nt9 6t6-445

County Matching Recorde¡ Clerk T¡easure¡ Treasurer,s Subrecipient

Nonnajor Funds

County County

s,204,8ee4 

: : 

122,128 41,015 49,6i9

- 2,024,t41 2.157,743 6t6,M5

- ,rn,rno - u,uuu :,ioo - - -

12.021

52tr9t5 2244-O3t 2-157143 128.7% 44ì15 4r.679 39265 616.445

(369.076t 389.368 (1.2E3.870) t1.626) 8.l6t) (18.728) \23-24ól

Q69,076) 3Ee,36r (r,283,810) (1,626) (t8,161) (18,728) Q3,246)

2,Ett,t82 4,282,457 1l I,411 74,544 84,736 t17,043

_!_Lt21Ii6 _!__l¿9gr¡9_ _q_2f2q$7 _!_.Lq2J!5 _q__Í..$l_ -!___qq!!q_ _!_221e? _i_______-__:_-

ì

I



Kânkakee Counfy, Illinois
Mejor and Nonmajor Speciål Rev€¡ue Funds
Ståtements of Reyenu€s, Exp€nditures and
Chenges in Fund Balances
For the Yeâr End€d ¡\¡ovember 30,2012

Revenues:

Paoperty t¿xes

I¡tergove¡Dment2l
Lic€nses âIrd permits

Fines ¿¡d fees

lnterest oD invesûnenß

Misc¿llâneous

Total ¡evenues

Expendilues:

Cene¡al govemment

Judiciåry a(ld coùrt related

Public safety

Public health a¡d welfare
Tra¡sportation

Eco¡omic developrnent

Capital ouday

Debt servìce principzl

Debt service interest

Total expenditu¡es

Excess (deficier¡Ð of aevenues

over expenditures

Other lnancing sources (uses):

Of,e¡ating üânsfe¡s out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (defioency) ofrevenues over
expenditu¡es a¡d oiher fin¿¡cirg
sources (ùses)

FuDd balance, beginnng ofyear

.-.r Fund b¿l¿rìc€, end ofyeâr

Norimaior FuDds
.

Secu¡iry Docu¡neût Law Service Fu¡ds -Sta¡e,s Victims and Dispute Administlatior¡,/
Fee Storage Libra¡y Attomey Witness Resolution Operations

$-$-$-$-$_$_s-s

-- 
547.;D se.ìn rs0,;86 L5:; zo,)zt q,iga zo.oza

29s'0t84---':----

36,006 3,E50 4,977 826

...-
547,tt9 56,473 t94,l36 6,5E4 2t,553 20,028

(176,373) Q82,t26) 3 (163,790) s2,E46 (18,567) r,387

(r57.29E) -

(t76.373) (439,424) 3 (163,790) s2,846 (18,567) 36t t,387

302,845 E25,0t6 1,680 248.122 58,582 t23,9?3 9,9t2 5E,025

s 126.472 S 385,662 $ 1,683 $ 84,332 S 111,428 $ 105,406 S t0,273 S 59,412



Kânkâkee Couùty, Illinois
Mâjor and Nonmsjor Speciâl Revenu€ Funds
Stâteñents of Revenueq Expenditures and
Chånges in Fund Balences
For the Yeår End€d November 30,2012

R€venues:

P¡operty taxes

l¡tergoveñmental
Licenses a¡d permits

Fines ¿¡d fees

Interest oD investane¡fs

Misc€lla¡eous
Total revenues

Expenditures:

General govemmenf

Jùdiciary a¡d court relâted

Public safety

Public health a¡d welfa¡e

Tra$portation
Eco¡omic developmelt
Capital ou ay

Debt service p¡incip¿l

Debt servic€ i¡tercst
Total expenditu¡es

Exc€ss (defi cienÐ of revenues

ovei expenditures

Ot¡er finaÍcing sources (ùses)i

Operating tra¡sfers out
Total othe¡ fin¿¡cing sou¡ces (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of ¡evenues over
expenditures and other {inancing
sources (uses)

Furd balance, begin¡ing ofye"f

Fund balanc€, end ofyear

Court knprovement A¡¡estee She¡iffTBL Coroner\ Vetera¡s Funds -
Automation Prog¡am Medical Account Fee Heatth Assistanc€ Sheriff

' : ' - ' . ' . ' . ',.111r:.i22 "1t::21 $

- 186,8?3
237,740 56,315 9,010 - 29,709 99,376

609 - 13 _ 55 1,259 E96 6 2,257

--gL269.904 s6,315 9,023 400 29,764 z,guns 
-tnw 

428 ,,2s7

t02,!26

co
O

,u.ì0,

t02.326 s6,402

166,578 (87) 9,023 (11,009) (t47,272) (32,234) 428 2,2s7

(rs7,298) (9,000)

as12r8)

9,280 (87) 23 400 (11,009) (147272) (32.234) (4,088) 2.2s7

676,167 182 872 500 t5,765 1,883,509 4,71,661 4,089 538,248

s 68s,447 $ 9s $ 895 S 900 $ 4,?56 S r.736,237 S 439,433 S I S s40,505

40,773

,.rurio,

,or,iou
82.269

40,773 3.068.808 216.06r

CDAP
Loans

-so.u.

vmg

205,264

t0,797



Kankakee County, lllinois
Msjor end Nonmajor Speci4l Rev€nue Funds
Stâtements of Revenues, Erpenditures and
Chenges in Fund BalâncÊs

For fhe Y€âr Ended November30,2012

Revenues:

Prope¡ty t¿\es

Iütergovem¡nental

Licenses a¡d permils

Fi¡es ¿¡d fe€s

Iderest on inveshnents

Misc€llâ¡eous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

General gove¡nmenl

J¡rdiciã¡y a¡d c¡urt rela¡ed

Public safety

Pùblic heålth arìd welfare

Tra¡spo¡t¿tion

Economic development

Capita.l ouday

Debt se¡vice priÍcipâl
Debt se¡vice interest

Total expenditu¡es

Excess (defi ciency) of rcvenues

over expendrtures

Other financing sources (uses):

Ope¡ating ûânsfers out
lotal other fiDa¡cing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) ofrcvenues ove¡
expenditùres a¡d othe¡ financing
sou¡c€s (uses)

Fu¡d bala¡ce, begiDning of yea¡

Fù¡d balaîce, end ofyeâr

Motor Fuel Co@ty Towr¡ship l¡fon¡ation Marriage wlA NorìJDajot
Ta)( Bridge Bridge System Fund G¡a¡ts Funds Total

$ - $ 868,719 $ $ - $ - s _ s 2,326,656 S 8,936,520t'e73'6-6s '. 174'462 
- - 226e'2-47 

''112:,ä1, '1i2:.ä!
- t93,t32 2,1gt - 1,372,874 2,097.682

1,395 t,185 t0 97 t4,233 16.624
4,850 _ t99,514

I,975,060 869.904 114-472 198.0?9 2.269247 11.236-937 18,718,175

: : ' "'u-^ :0, , ziz,í:: 
'zi:,i:i

2,767,472 2,767,472
1,668,106 83,371 154,418 - 4,680,083 6.704.224

- ,,rrr,rr, - ,,ir, ' 2'269'2-47 
lt"i?:\it', 

",1?^:1\',_:.-
l-663-106 1J16.r2, 154:4lt r0lJ?5 845 2269247 lló03,8r0 

-:¡.O¡¡i56

co

306,9s4 (846,325) 20,0s4 94'04 t,346 _ \2,366,81' (2,346,531)

306,954 (846.32s) 20,054 94,904 t,346 - Q,69498s) (2,614,693)

979,544 2.297,619 24,212 2t5.864 3,66'7 13,410,381 17,711,675

_q_j?ggc!_ -ê__.ry1Ð4 
j__l!266_ _!__l_!!J!8 _Lër:- $ - $ r0,7r5.3e6 s i5,036,e82



Kanl<akce County, Illinois
Juvenile f)etention Dcbt Service Fund
Stafclnent of Revcnucs, Ex¡reudilures and
Changcs in Fund Balancc - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended Novembcr 30, 2012

Original Over
and Final (Under)
Budget Actual Budgel

Revenues:

Property taxes

Interest on investments

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Other se¡vices and charges

Debt service principal
Debt service interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Fund balance, begìnning ofyear

Fund balance, end ofyear

s 574,552 $ 585,438

450 350

575,002 585,788

274,103

225,000

75.449

$ 10,886

( 100)

271,405 3,302
223,710 ( 1,290)
76,739 t,290

574,552 577,854

450 7,934

3 5,686

$ 43,620

3,302

$ 7,484

82



Kankakec County, Illinois
2009 Bond Scrics Debt Scrryicc Fund
Stafcment of Rcvcnucs, Expcnditurcs and
Changes in Fund Balancc - Budgct and Actual
For the Year Ended Novcmbcr 30, 2012

Revenues:

Totaì revenue

Expenditures:
Debt service principal
Debt service interest

'l'otal expenditures

140,000 140,000

Original C)ver

and Final (Under)

Budget Actual Budget

$-$-

174,595 175,585 990

314,595 315,585

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over expenditures (314,595) (315,585) (990)

Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers in 314,595 314,595

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses) _S_______:_ (990) _S____IZE

Fund balance, beginning ofyear 251,600

Fund balance, end ofyear $ 250,ó10

83



Kankal<ee County, lllinois
201I Bond Scries Debt Scrvicc Fund
Stâtcmclrt of Revenucs, Expc¡rditures and
Changes in tr'und Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Ycar Ended Novembcr 30, 2012

Original
and Final

Over
(Under)

Revenues:

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Other services and charges
Debt service principal
Debt service interest

Total expend itures

Fund balance, beginning ofyear

Fund balance, end ofyear

Budget Actual Budget

$$$-

- 5,000 5,000
270,000 270,000
218,000 217,413 (587)

488,000 492,4t3 4,413

s 166,753

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over expenditures (488,000) (492,413) (4,4t3\

Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers in - 6s9,t66 659,166

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses) _I___E!9900I t66,753 $ 654,753

84



Kankakee County, Illiuois
2012 Bond Serics Debt Scruicc Fund
Statcnrcnt of Rcvcnucs, Expenditurcs and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For thc Ycar Endcd Novembcr 30. 2012

Revenues:

Miscellaneous income

Total revenue

Expenditures:

Other services and charges

Debt service principal
Debt service interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers in

Excess (delìciency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses)

Fund balance, beginn ing ofycar

Fund balance, end ofyear

Over
(Under')

Actual ßudget

520

520

Origiual
and Final
Iludget

$-

zlo,ooo

3 15,000

(31s,000)

3,750
(2,s00)
( 1,907)

520

520

3,150
267,500

43,093

(657)

(313,823) 1,t17

4t9,5t1 4t9,5tt

_!____qry!E 105,688 $ 420,688

$ 10s,688

85



Kankakce County, Illinois
Statenlcnt of Fiduciary Nct Assets
Fiduciary Fuuds - I'rivate Purpose Trust fir¡nds
Novcnrbcr 30, 2012

Assets

Cash

Investments, at cost
Receivables:

Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liab¡litics and Net Assets

Liâbilities
Vouchers payable

Total liabilities

Net Asscts

Restricted for other purposes

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

95,l s7

Contract Circuit
Township Applaisal Cìerk

MI-'T Work llonds Total

$ r68,s97 S 16,s79 $ 876,1t2 $ 1,061,288
1,148,898 50,128 500,000 t,699,026

- 95.157

_þ__Jlnés2 _!______9!!91- _s__ulÉJ!_ $ 2,855,471

8 2t ,423 $ s 2r ,423

2t ,423 2t ,423

1,39t,229 66,707 1.376. n2 2,814,048

. I,39t,229 66,707 1.376.112 2,834,048

-$__J42É2_ _9__-__9!ly _q_i76¿1, _!_L!l¡{r_



Karrl<akec Courrty, Illinois
Sfalc¡ìrcnt of Chângcs in FiduciaÌy Nct Assets
Fiduciary Funds - Privatc Purposc Trust Funds
For the Year Ended Novembcr 30.2012

Township

MFT

$ 1,3s1,s7ó

1,854

1,3 53,430

I ,548,023

I,548,023

(194,s93)

I,585,822

8 t,391,229

Conhact

Appraisal
Work

Circuit
Clerk
Bonds Total

Additions:
Intergovemmental
Miscellaneous

lnterest

Total additions

Deductions:

Transportation

Other

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning ofyear

Net assets, end ofyear

$ - s 1,351,576

r,704,586 1.704.s86

93 - 1,941

93 t,704,s86 3,058,109

- 1,704,;oo i,liÏ,13?'

93 (l 14) (194,6t4)

t,376,226 _ 3,028,662

$ 66,707 S t,376,tt2 $ 2,834,048



Kankake€ County, Illinois
Fiduciâry Funds - Agency Funds
Combining Balânce Sheet

November 30, 2012

Assets

Cash

Investme¡ts, âl cosf

Receivables:

Accoünts

Total assets

Liabilities

Vouchers payable

Dùe to other govemmeûÎs

Due to othe$

Total Iiabilities

Riverside Sheriff Unclaimed
Back Country Anowhead Drainage Civil Inhe t¿¡ce Condemnation Legacies Sheriff
Tax Estates S.A. Hills S.A. Districts Collector Proc€ss Tax Account and Bonds Seizu¡e

49 $ (14,018) $ 58 S 234,747 $ 33,333 S 74,226 S 2,693 S 2s7,319 $ 34.358
- 13,3?8 227,206 _ 38,132 3t-279

r_____lt _!_ligqiÐ _q__ry36_ _q_Í!253 _q___ëJ¡3 :_13226_ _!-__2., % _g__33111_1 jJ40.Á31_ 
_q__2q48

$ - $ - $ - $6,603S - $- $ s s _ $ -
49 - 33,333

(14,018) 13,436 455.350 74,22o 335.5 240.631 96.528

_s_____12_ _q__jl4,qlÐ _!-_]l¡ig_ _9_19!e5l_ _q___ëi33_ _!_J3226 _q___2{e3_ _J__ër4_r .s?40,63't $ e6,528

s 96,528



Kankâkêe County, Illinois
Fiduciâry Funds - Agency Funds
Combining Balance Sheel

November 30,2012

Assets

Cash

Invesûnents, at cost

Receivables:

Accounts

Total assets

Liabilities

Voùche¡s payable

Due 10 other govemments

Due to oÎìe¡s

Total liabilities

Sheriff
Sale Sheriff Ci¡cuit County Sheriff Teen

Account Comfiissâry Clerk Clerk Safery Cou¡t Tolal

$ 15,605 S t48,672 $ 331,354 $ 854,641 $ 6,386 $ 4,213 t 
^:t:;,;ï?

2,383 t77,383

$ 15,605 S 148,672 $ 331,354 $ 8s4,641 $ 6.J86 5 6,601 S 2,607,607

s $ - $ - $ - s - $ 2,398 $ 9,001

33,382
15.605 148-672 331.354 854.64ì 6.386 4-201 2.565.214

$ 15,605 $ 148,672 $ 331,3!l $ 854,641 5 ó,386 $ 6,601 S 2,607,601



Kankaltce County, Illinois
Stâtcmcnt of Changes ir Assets and L¡abilities - Agcncy Funds
l'or the Ycar Ended Novcmbo.30,2012

Beginning
ofYear Additions

s 287,E96

t4
I03,879

2 t4,4 t 1,085

280,337

1't7

498

561

238,900
t46,027

2,160,7 4s

5,856,944

5,238,726
15,142
23,527

_!__n8!64!:8

Reductions

End

ofYear

Back Tax
Riverside Corìntry Estates Special Assessment
Anowhead HiÌl Special Assesstnent
Drainage Districts
Collector
Sheriff Civil Process

Inherìtance Tax
Condemnation Account
Legacies

Sheriff Seizure

Sheriff Sale Account
Sheriff Commissary
Circuit Clerk
Counry Clerk
Sheriff Safety

Teen Court

Total

$ 4s
(14,018)

13,422

537 ,96'1
105,431

4,87I
66,392

3 3 5,013

240,3t5
3 3,73 8

249,369
261,890

384,728
1,918,342

8,364

_q__1ü_tu6

$ 287,892

179,893

214,483,t83
210,989

63,87 6

239

176,1l0
379,791

2,279,963

5,910,3 r 8

6,302,42'1
R 75Á

25,290

s 230,308,727

$ 49
(14,018)

13,436

461,953

74,226

2,693

335,51 I

240,637

96,528

15,605

t48,6'72

331,354
854,641

6,3 86

6,60t

_g_2É!1,607-



KrDkrkë Coùrry, Ill¡nois
Ass€s.d valù¡tiods. R¡t6 !nd Errdsion.
Fo. the t¿x l.r] yérs 2002 th.ough 2011

As*sd vâluatio¡! ¡er ofspc.ial
dist¡icts Ðd geúdl abatchmis

IMR,F

Coety biShwy

Public Buildhs Colmissiú
EÍelsion cdùcario¡

IMRF
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